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Characteristics of The Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM"”)
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “"GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
P HE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —FE— NF+_-H=+—HILFZE

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
ZT-—fF ZZ-—=F ZZ-0EF —ZT-HF ZE-—xF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FAT &L FAT FET FiT

RESULTS ES

Revenue WA 350,880 579,380 499,375 174,741 104,367
Profit/(Loss) before income tax I FFEM AR,/ (EE) 36,462 (14,723) (26,611) (32,991) (45,865)
Income tax expense FTieHiRX (1,361) (1,447) (559) (1,566) (390)
Profit/(Loss) for the year FREFN,(BE) 35,101 (16,170) (27,170) (34,557) (46,255)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHERE

Total assets BELHE 391,238 358,012 274,874 196,023 149,790

Total liabilities =Rt (239,280)  (165,745)  (111,082) (71,966) (74,339)
Total equity g it 151,958 192,267 163,792 124,057 75,451

“E-AFFR PEERZRERAT 5



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EERE

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Yu Tak
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”), it is my
pleasure to present the 2016 Annual Report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

The year of 2016 remained difficult to the jewellery retail
market in China. Rising gold prices for much of the year and
slowing down of the domestic economy of China pushed the
demand for jewellery to a seven-year low.

Sales of the Group's jewellery products relied on the distribution
network of franchisees. The "“Point-To-Area” market penetration
strategy remained the main strategy of the Group in developing
its franchise businesses. Our marketing efforts in enhancing
the brand’s image and characters were proofed effective and it
was encouraging to see that some of the existing franchisees
had started to expand their businesses from bases in first- and
second-tier cities to the third- and forth-tier cities strategically.

It is believed that the jewellery market of China will be
recovering in 2017. The Group will stay focus on developing
its franchise businesses. Through tight co-operations with the
franchisees, both online and offline, the management will strive
for raising income and profitability of the business segment.

The Group commits to develop the brand H< HK JEWELRY in
China while efforts will be made to improve profitability of the
IT Products and Services segment, identify synergies of the two
existing business segments and, at the same time, aggressively
seek for new opportunities.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

APPRECIATION IS =it

On behalf of all Board members, | would like to take this ZHAABHI#eREXPEEESKE - HIRE
opportunity to express my gratitude to the Shareholders and G ZARNEBEEHEHIBEE A RS FER AR
business partners of the Group for their continued supports and & * WHEE TEBABNRELZETHELEE -
trust during the past years, and my most sincere appreciation M TIERARNEBELENEE @ BUASEHD
to the Directors, management and staff at all levels for their #Hi=E o

dedication, hard works and contributions to the Group.

Chong Yu Ping HEY

Chairman =

Hong Kong aBH

17 March 2017 —E—+F=A++tH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s loss
attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
HK$42,763,000 (2015: HK$28,467,000).

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
amounted to HK$104,367,000 (2015: HK$174,741,000).

The sales of gold and jewellery products and franchise income
contributed to HK$19,472,000 of the Group’s revenue during
the year (2015: HK$35,240,000). The sales of enterprise
software products dropped by 46% to HK$39,799,000 (2015:
HK$74,203,000). Revenue on systems integration business
decreased by 53% to HK$6,386,000 (2015: HK$13,633,000)
while revenue on professional services business decreased by
25% to HK$38,710,000 (2015: HK$51,665,000).

OPERATION REVIEW

The year of 2016 remained difficult to the jewellery retail
market in China. Rising gold prices for much of the year and
slowing down of the domestic economy of China pushed the
demand for jewellery to a seven-year low.

The National Bureau of Statistics of China reported that the
GDP for the full year of 2016 expanded by 6.7 percent that it
was the slowest GDP growth in 26 years subsequent to 6.9
percent of 2015 and 7.3 percent of 2014. The current official
GDP target for 2017 was 6.5 percent.

Gold price was highly volatile in 2016. Having risen 25% by
the end of September 2016, it relinquished some of its gains
in Q4 and still ended the year up at 8%. Although global gold
demand gained by 2% to reach a 3-year high of 4,308 tonnes, it
contributed to growth in demand of investment and it failed to
translate into demand in the jewellery sectors. According to the
reports of the China Gold Association, the demand for jewellery
in China was, in fact, down by 17% in 2016 hit by consumer
uncertainty in a softening economy and rising gold prices.

Sales of the Group's jewellery products relied on the
distribution network of franchisees. In 2016, the “Point-To-
Area” market penetration strategy remained the main strategy
of the Group in developing its franchise businesses. Efforts
in enhancing the brand’s images and characters by consumer
researches and launches of new product series were proved

BEEWE DM
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR D

effective for gaining domestic market share. Besides, it was
encouraging to see that some of the franchisees had started to
extend their footholds from the first- and second-tier cities to
the third- and forth-tier cities strategically. Although there was
a number of franchisees who failed to meet their obligations
under the franchise agreements had quitted, the management
believed that eliminations of uncompetitive franchisees were, in

fact, positive to the development of the brand.

For the IT Products and Services segment, size of businesses
decreased further in 2016 due to the disposal of interest in a
loss-making subsidiary during 2015. During 2016, the operations
in China had raised their headcounts aggressively for some new
contracts which were, however, either subsequently cancelled
or delayed. This led to undue losses in the segment. The
management had already ratified the issue and regained control
of staff cost before the financial year end date.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group remained in a strong
financial position with bank balances and cash of HK$24,507,000
(2015: HK$33,563,000).

The Group monitored its capital structure using the gearing ratio
which is net debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the
Group defined net debt as debt, which comprises long-term and
short-term borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total
equity comprised equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The gearing ratio is not
presented, as the net debt was zero. (2015: zero).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s issued shares were
1,188,460,000 shares (2015: 1,188,460,000 shares).

INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no investment in the
equity securities listed in Hong Kong (2015: HK$Nil).

ZE—RFFEW

HEERZERARA R

i

e Ems o i - SAEENE - &
DB INEEEEARTR — - ZIZSEEMAE
BREE  CDEMHEBEEZEE=RAN= - WEMT - B
FmEABE D THEMBER BT INE
Fﬁ?ﬁ%ﬂ:/_\ﬁfﬁgg EIREMRE - FETMBERN
ENGEPREBEREHREERE - SEKKE
Emﬁ&%@ﬁﬁmﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁm°

EREMMBERRRGOM R E=_F—4
FHE-—FXBANMB IR MNER _?' NE
It BB TSR — PR - KT —R%F -

RENFEH EPIE’J%@F*H‘HH—A B
EFMEHNBY HBRWEUEHE R - EEBAD
MELEE - EBECRAVEFESEFEATERE
AL IEHE e M B 5 B TR HE INIE S

REBESRMBER

ASE@ZHM%HKWE?—%%& —RFt+=
—+—HEHEFARITES &iﬁ%m 507,000/ 7T
—ZT—FR % : 33,563,000/87T) ©

—7

AEBRFABRABEEBETERGELE - U
HERREEAERE - ARE/FRAER/AR
(BERMEEREE) KR LRSSEY -

B iEBEBRA M BEIRERT IR Z NA B
B AR B M OF R R AR - IV RER

T(ZT—RF T) AYEIINEEHLE -
ﬁzxmﬂ

RZEBE-—RFT_A=1t—RH XEEHZE
BT M A1,188,460,000 (= F — A F:

1,188,460,0000% ) °

rE
RZE—RFE+ZA= ‘f’ El REB W EITE
REBLMZBRAZBR(ZE—RF : T&T) °

g



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR D

SEGMENTAL PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the turnover of the
Jewellery Product segment and the IT Products and Services
segments amounted to HK$19,472,000 (2015: HK$35,240,000)
and HK$84,895,000 (2015: HK$139,501,000) respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the number of employees of the
Group was 427 (2015: 435). Remuneration is determined by
reference to market terms and the performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. Year-end bonus
based on individual performance will be paid to employees as
recognition of and reward for their contributions.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Management believes that the jewellery market of
China will be recovering in 2017. The Group will develop its
franchise businesses more aggressively by recruitments of
brand representatives, further efforts in branding, marketing of
signature and exclusive products. Through tight co-operations
with the franchisees, both online and offline, the management
will strive for raising income and profitability of the business
segment.

For the IT Products and Services segment, effective cost
controls and market exploration will remain the focuses of the
management. Further efforts in enhancement of the organization
and businesses are required to raise competitiveness.

Overall, the Group will continue to vigorously promote the
development strategy of H< HK JEWELRY while efforts will
be made to reduce reliance on the IT Products and Services
segment. With effective internal management and adhering to
the usual good practice, the management commits to optimize
the existing business structure and aggressively seek for new
opportunities.
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(1)

(2)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
N ,A\Aiﬁi

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance practices and procedures. The
Directors believe that sound and reasonable corporate
governance practices are essential for the growth of
the Company and for safeguarding the shareholders’
interests and the Company's assets.

The Company’s code of corporate governance practices
was adopted with reference to the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
There is no deviation from the relevant Code Provisions
as at 31 December 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the strategic
directions, management, business and financial
performance of the Group.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day operational
responsibilities of the Group's business to the executive
management team under the leadership of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer and various Board committees.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises the following members:

Executive Directors:
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
(Appointed on 17 February 2016)
Ms. LI Xia
Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. LU Haina

Ms. NA Xin

“ERNFFR
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(2)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 qu‘AiEd:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meeting

The Board meets at least four times a year to review
financial and operating performance and discuss the

(2)

EXe8FRLRTOREHE - Nestit
BREBERER - WARNAEBZ AR

Group's direction and strategy. Details of the attendance KB - BEEEHF R 2AFBOT ¢
of the Board of Directors are as follows:
21 Mar 2016 6 May 2016 9 Aug 2016 11 Nov 2016 15 Dec 2016
—E-XKE —E-RE —E-XE —E-RE —E-RE
=A=+—H EAKH NARBH +—-B+—-H +=BA+EH
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping  HEFEEAE v/ v v v v
Ms. LI Xia TEL v v/ v v v/
Mr. CHEN Yin BRE Sk v v v v v
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MRE S v v/ v v v/
Ms. LU Haina B+ v v v/ v v
Ms. NA Xin a2+ J / J / /

Directors are given notice of regular Board meetings of
at least 14 days in advance. The Directors will receive
details of agenda with comprehensive reports on the
management’s strategic plans, updates by business unit
heads on their lines of business, financial objectives,
plans and actions at least 3 days before a Board meeting.

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary
who is responsible for ensuring that Board procedures
are complied with and advises the Board on corporate
governance and compliance matters.

The executive Directors meet every two weeks to
review company business pipeline, receivables, and
business unit performance. Senior Management meets
with Business Unit Management every week to review
project status, and business unit issues.

The Company has undertaken several meetings, first
with Senior Management, second with the audit
committee, and subsequently with the Board, to discuss
and review the Group's practice on corporate governance
and make specific checks on the Group’'s compliance
via a compliance matrix in accordance to the criteria set
forth by the GEM Listing Rule.
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(2)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
N qu‘AiEd:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independence of Directors

All the Directors do not have any financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationship with each
other.

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations
of independence were received from each of the
Company's independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive directors are considered to
be independent.

Directors’ Training

Directors must keep abreast of their collective
responsibilities. Every new appointed Director should
receive induction and subsequent briefing and
professional development.

Pursuant to Code A.6.5 of the Code Provisions (which is
effective from 1 April 2012), Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. During the period, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development
activities by way of reading materials relevant to the
Company’'s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, including but not limited to the changes
in respect of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap.622) and latest developments in connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

Mr. Lam Tin Faat, as the chairman of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee also attended a number of seminars/courses
in relation to continuous professional developments
organized by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants during the year in 2016.

Directors’ Liability Insurance

Appropriate liability insurance, the coverage of which
is reviewed annually, has been arranged to indemnify
the Directors’ risk exposure arising out of corporate
activities.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer should
be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual, so that there is a clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the Company's
business to ensure a balance of power and authority.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
was in compliance with the aforesaid Code Provisions,
except for the following deviation as described below:

Mr. Lin Di (“Mr. Lin") resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer with effect from 30 March 2015 and following his
resignation, Ms. Li Xia (“Ms. Li"”), the Chairman at the
time, was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer.

Being aware of the said deviation from Code A.2.1 of
the Code Provisions, but in view of the current rapid
development of the Group, the Board believes that with
the support of the management team, vesting the roles
of both Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer in
the same person would facilitate the execution of the
Group’s business strategies and boost effectiveness of
its operation. In addition, under the supervision by the
Board, which comprised of two executive Directors,
including Ms. Li, and three independent non-executive
Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016,
the interests of the Shareholders and Stakeholders was
adequately and fairly represented.

The Company has sought to re-comply with Code
A.2.1 of the Code Provisions with its best endeavours
by identifying and appointing a suitable and qualified
candidate to the position of the Chief Executive Officer.
Having considered Ms. Li's experiences in the industry,
the Company considers it to be more suitable and to
the best interests of the Company for Ms. Li to remain
as the Chief Executive Officer. Ms. Li resigned as the
Chairman of the Board on 17 February 2016 and Mr.
Chong Yu Ping was appointed as the Chairman of the
Board on 17 February 2016. Such was in line with the
requirement under the Code A.2.1 of the Code Provisions
and demonstrated a clear division of the responsibilities
between Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

(3)

ERETHAR

RIBFRIEXEA2.11E - TR EITIRER
ZBEeZADR - BTEHER - AL HE
FEEFSERRANABFEBER 2B
BRRE D - NEREDMBER 2 TE -

RBE_ZE-—RF+A=+—RHILF
B » RNABESF Bl sy AMESC - TR
BESRIRERSD -

marE((HEE)E-—F—hE=A=
THEBETRAR  MREBHER - &
RAERZERFERT(FLLDEZ
ERITHARE -

EEgrENE FlREETAEXEA 2.
BZBF  BERAEERITERZA
# o EBEeRAEEEERZHET B
B— ATREEFERITHREHSEHHIT
AEEEBRERITSEERE - o -
REBEEZZE—R"F+A=+—HILHF
B EETAEEMERTES(BES
TEI)R=ZBBILERNTES  FRER
FEBsERRICESSEE TEST
DRAFRE o

ARREBNABERERABRAREE
THARE B - USKEHETTRIEX
FA21ME - ERFRLEIRERN KR
RRAARBAFT LT RBRETHRERE
REBENAARRRSZENE - THLIR
“E-RFE_ATLABEESEEIE
MEFFAEENR_T—R"F_A+LHE
ZEREFSIF - WNTATRGRXSE
A2 1Mz EFR - BIR D T F RITHR A E
MARBE -

14 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016



(4)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERB|E

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 11 August
2000. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group.

The revised terms of reference of Audit Committee in
accordance with Code C.3.3 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
Meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Audit Committee is currently comprised
Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Lu Haina and Ms. Na Xin, all of
whom are independent Non-executive Directors. Mr. Lam
Tin Faat is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee meets four times a year to review
with senior management and at least twice a year with
the Company’s auditors for the Company’s audit findings,
accounting policies and standards, changes of accounting
rules (if any), compliance with listing rules, internal and
audit control, and budget and cash flow forecast.

The Group's unaudited quarterly and interim results
and audited annual results during the year ended 31
December 2016 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who is of the opinion that such statements
comply with the applicable accounting standards and that
adequate disclosures have been made.

The summary of work of the audit committee during the
period is as follows:—

- met with the external auditors, reviewed and
made recommendations for the Board’s approval
on the annual, interim and quarterly reports of the
Company;

- reviewed and approved audit fee;

- recommended the re-appointment of Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditors, subject
to the Shareholders’ approval at the annual general
meeting;

- reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems; and

- reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued) (4) BFZEE=SH)
Details of the attendance of members at Audit Committee EHLEEeKERFEEZ I EHBNOT -
meeting are as follows:
21 Mar 2016 6 May 2016 9 Aug 2016 11 Nov 2016
—E-RE —E-RE —E-RE —E-RE
=A=+-—H HAAE NERH +—-B+—H
Mr. LAM Tin Faat MKE ST E v/ v/ v v
Ms. LU Haina s pegun v v v v
Ms. NA Xin BT &+ v v v v/
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (5) HFMZEES
The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 FTMEZEeE RN _EERAFRATHK
May 2005. The Remuneration Committee is to make Vo HMEEENIRMARTZEBEERS
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy BEBAEZHFHBRRMEENEZEETSIR
and structure for all directors and senior management's HEZ -
remuneration.
The revised terms of reference of Remuneration Committee BB AR LR AISFRIECEB.1. 21I7'<El’]
in accordance with Code B.1.2 of the Code Provisions FHE B e BESED N =
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board FZAZ+—RHBIZEE® E%LZE%
meeting held on 21 March 2012. N e
The members of Remuneration Committee is currently FNE B IRMB I IEPITE MRS
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are ERBIRLE  ARPITEEFFEL LM
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia WK o MRBEERBTMWNEZESER o
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.
The Remuneration Committee should hold at least #ﬁ@ﬂé,\ Eﬁﬁliﬁaﬁz’“—miﬁﬁ
one regular meeting in a year. During the year under cBEFEN - HNEZE K EMKE
review, the members of Remuneration Committee, Mr. %E =5 ﬁi&ﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’\_g—ﬂﬁ
Lam Tin Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the +_At+HBHEFHNEESSE -
Remuneration Committee Meeting on 15 December
2016.
The summary of work of the remuneration committee A - HEZEEM TERZNT -
during the period is as follows:—
= reviewed and recommended to the Board on the = BEHRTEERA R SREERE
remuneration packages of the executive Directors WEMHETSE  UttmESSRY
and senior management of the Company; and #EE o &
= reviewed and recommended to the Board on the = EHBIUINTEENESTES -
Directors’ fees of independent non-executive WHtMEESREER °
Directors.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE (6) REZEES

The Nomination Committee was established on 21 March
2012. The Nomination Committee is to assist Board of
Directors of the Company to deal with matters in relation
to appointment of members of the Board.

REZEGENR-_T—-F=A=+—H
K - RERBEIHIARAEETE R
BERZIEFENEZEER -
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The written terms of reference of Nomination Committee
in accordance with Code A.5.2 of the Code Provisions
of the GEM Listing Rules was adopted on the Board
meeting held on 21 March 2012.

The members of Nomination Committee is currently
comprised Mr. Lam Tin Faat and Ms. Na Xin, both are
independent Non-executive Directors, and Ms. Li Xia
who is an executive Director, Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee should hold at least one
regular meeting in a year. During the year under review,
the members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Lam Tin
Faat, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin attended the Nomination
Committee Meeting on 15 December 2016.

The summary of work of the nomination committee
during the period is as follows:—

- reviewed the existing Board's structure, size and
composition; and

- reviewed and assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary. Our current Company Secretary is Mr.
Zhao Zhipeng, appointed on 30 June 2015, is responsible
for facilitating the process of implementing the Board's
decision, as well as communications between Board
members and the management team, and advising the
Board and its committees on all governance matters.

The biographical details of Mr. Zhao Zhipeng are set out
on page 42 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE OF CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirms that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings
and the code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
twelve months ended 31 December 2016.
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(9) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION (9) EBETEAE

HE-_T—X"F+-A=+—HLFE "
AR A AR BT (R AN SR BB (AZ B M IR

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the remuneration
for the provision of audit and non-audit services by the

Auditors to the Group is as follows:

BRGNS T

2016 2015
—EB-AF s
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFHET
Fees breakdown by accounting firms ZERRSHEFTES
Grant Thornton* EE-IES i
Annual audit services FEIZERRS 747 758
Other professional CPA firms Hth BB EGTTANT
Annual audit services FEZEIRG 174 229
Total HET 921 987
& Grant Thornton (including Grant Thornton and Grant * KA EHAT(CIEH A S E

Thornton Hong Kong Limited, hereinafter referred to as
“Grant Thornton”).

(10) INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognises that a sound and effective internal
control system will contribute to the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, the reliability of financial
reporting and the Group’s compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

Management team of the Company has established
the Group’s Internal Control Policies and Guidance for
monitoring the internal control system.

The Board has delegated to the management team of
the Company the implementation of such internal control
systems as well as the review of relevant financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
procedures. Qualified personnels and individual business unit
heads of the Group maintain and monitor the compliance
of these internal control systems and procedures on an
ongoing basis and report variances to senior management.

B (HHEBER)RAF(EE)EF
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(10) INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued) (10) PORBEEIE ()

Based on the assessment and review made by the Board
and senior management on the effectiveness of the internal
control system, the Audit Committee is satisfied that:

o the internal controls and accounting systems of the
Group are designed to provide reasonable assurance
as to material assets of the Group are protected,
business risks attributable to the Group are identified
and monitored, material transactions are executed
in accordance with management'’s authorisation and
the accounts are reliable for publication; and

o there is an ongoing process in place for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced
by the Group.

(11) COMMUNICATION WITH

SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT

The Company endeavors to maintain an on-going
dialogue with the shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings or other general meetings to
communicate with the shareholders and encourage their
participation. The Company will ensure that there are
separate resolutions for separate issues proposed at the
general meetings.

The Company will continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to update
investors on relevant information on the Group’s business
in a timely manner, subject to relevant regulatory
requirements.

A) General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a
good opportunity for communication between the
shareholders of the Company and the Board. An
annual general meeting of the Company shall be
held in each year and at such time and place to be
determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called
a special general meeting.
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(11) COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS RIGHT (cContinued)

A)

B)

C)

General Meetings (Continued)

The 2017 AGM is scheduled on Friday, 5 May
2017. A circular containing, among other matters,
further information relating to the 2017 AGM will
be despatched to the shareholders of the Company
together with this report in accordance with the Bye-
Laws, the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations.

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 58 of the Bye-Laws, any one or
more shareholders of the Company holding as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the company secretary, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with the provisions of Section 74 (3) of the Bye-Laws.

Right to Put Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders of the Company have the right to put
enquiries to the Board. All such enquiries shall be
in writing and sent by post to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary.
Shareholders may also make enquiries with the
Board at the general meetings of the Company.
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(12) ATTENDANCE OF GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the
Chairman should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company and he should invite the chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and any other committees (as appropriate)
to attend. Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG
Code, independent non-executive Director and other non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings of
the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 13 May 2016 an and a special general meeting of the
Company was held on 12 August 2016, and all the then
Directors had attended such general meetings.

INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication channels
between itself and the Shareholders, and investors. These include
answering questions through the general meetings, the publication
of annual, interim and quarterly reports, notices, announcements
and circulars on the Company’s website at www.jancofreight.com
and meetings with investors and the Shareholders. News update
of the Group's business development and operation are also
available on the Company's website (http://www.hkjewelry.net/).

There had been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the period.
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Yu Tak International Holdings Limited is principally engaged
in the development, sale and implementation of enterprise
software products and the provision of systems integration
and professional services, design and sales of gold and
jewellery products and investment holding. Its subsidiaries,
which offer a full spectrum of enterprise applications to banks,
financial enterprises and multi-national companies in Hong
Kong, China and Southeast Asia, are leading enterprises in
the industry in terms of technology. By unswervingly adhering
to the philosophy of innovation-driven development and its
goal of development, the Group keeps abreast of time and is
committed to expanding its business, in an effort to maximize
return for the shareholders. Meanwhile, the Group places
emphasis on environment protection and social responsibility,
proactively participates in public welfare activities, and attaches
great importance to safeguarding employees’ rights and
interests to offer them an ideal working environment.

SOCIETY

Employment and Labour Practices
Employees’ Rights and Interests

The Group strictly abides by the relevant employment laws in
Hong Kong, and is committed to safeguarding and protecting
employees’ rights and interests. A set of well-established
employment policies covering recruitment, remuneration and
welfare, assessment and promotion is in place, which sets out
various standards and guidelines in respect of employment,
so as to prevent unfair treatment. Employees’ remuneration
shall be determined based on their individual performance,
qualification and experience with reference to the prevailing
market rate.

We value each individual employee as we recognise their
contribution to the success of the Group. Therefore, the Group
offers year-end bonus to the staff based on their individual
performance every year as a token of recognition and reward.
In addition, we will conduct assessment of each employee’s
performance on a regular basis and, where appropriate, offer
them promotion opportunities.

The Group’s management has always been willing to accept
well-intentioned advices and attached great importance to the
communication with employees. The annual dinner and various
festival activities organized by the Group all contributed to
building a healthier employment relationship and a cohesive
work team.
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Occupational Safety

Due to the service and retail nature of our business, our
employees are not subject to material safety hazards during
their work. However, we still attach great importance to our
employees’ health and safety, and have established sound
relevant system in accordance with the labour laws, fire control
regulations and industry practices. In addition to regular fire drill,
we enhanced employees’ capability in coping with incidents and
unexpected disasters, and also organized safety education to
enhance our staff’'s safety awareness. Meanwhile, the Company
has maintained appropriate liability insurance for its directors
and employees to provide coverage to them for risks associated
with the business operation of the Company. The insurance
coverage is reviewed annually.

Development and Training

The Group spares no effort in training its employees, and will
arrange appropriate trainings for all employees ranging from
front-line sales staff to logistics management and technical
personnel, in order to improve their knowledge and skills,
thereby improving the Company’s service quality.

All new employees will receive orientation training upon joining
our Group, which will help them fully understand their duties
and the skills required. Senior employees will act as their tutor
at work to give on-the-spot instructions. In addition, department
heads will coordinate with the human resources department to
develop suitable training programs for employees as required
and based on their assessment of individual employees.

As the management of the Group, the Directors must be
fully aware of their overall responsibilities. The Group strictly
abides by the requirements of code provision A.6.5 of the
Corporate Governance Code. In addition to orientation training,
all newly appointed Directors shall participate in the training
programs in relation to continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the
period, all Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by ways of reading
materials in relation to the Company's business or Directors’
responsibilities.
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Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the labour law and other relevant
regulations in Hong Kong which strictly prohibits the employment
of people under the age of 18 or forced labour. We also have
formulated explicit internal guidance which requires that during
the recruitment process, the original copies of the identity
certification documents of the job applicants should be verified
before employment. Any job applicants who provide false identity
information will be handed over to the police for follow-up actions.

Supply Chain Management

The Group's suppliers mainly include software suppliers or
relevant outsourcing suppliers, and their business operation will
not have any adverse impact on the environment and society.
Therefore, we have no guidance on supply chain management
in place. However, we will conduct an internal assessment
of each supplier on a regular basis in order to review our
cooperation with them.

Product Liability

The Group strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations in
Hong Kong and has formulated its own internal guidelines to set
quality criteria for various products and services. A dedicated
team has been appointed to take charge of the assessment
work to ensure the quality criteria have been met. The Group
has formulated strict review procedures for its IT software to
prevent any risks to the health and safety of the consumers.
We have also established comprehensive regulations on the
usage of product labels in accordance with relevant laws to
prevent any false or misleading information.

Meanwhile, we have also established a set of sound mechanism
to handle complaints and product recalls. Upon receipt of any
complaint, we will carry out internal investigation immediately
and take follow-up and improvement measures, so as to prevent
similar events from happening again.

Anti-corruption

Although the Group has not formulated any explicit anti-corruption
policies, it has always upheld the principle of integrity and
strictly abided by the relevant regulations in Hong Kong, and is
committed to preventing corruption. A variety of procedures have
been established to ensure prompt follow-up and investigation
upon receipt of any corruption report, and any people involved in
corruption will be handed over to the competent authorities. With
joint efforts by all staff, no incidents of corruption involving any
of our employees were reported so far.
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Contribution to the Society

The Group proactively implements the philosophy of “take
and give” by making positive contributions to the society and
actively participating in public welfare activities. We offer
more job opportunities to local residents by recruiting local
employees. In addition, the Group proactively encourages its
employees to participate in community and charity activities and
advocates charitable concept among the employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Emission Reduction

The business of the Group mainly includes development of IT
software and system and doesn’t involve industrial activities
with high pollution levels. As such, neither greenhouse gases
or waste gases nor discharges such as sewage or wastes will
be generated during the ordinary course of business. Therefore,
the Group has no relevant policies in place. However, we will
properly collect and dispose general office wastes in accordance
with the relevant regulations and rules.

Utilisation of Resources

Although the Group is not a resource-consuming enterprise,
it has also taken various measures to facilitate the rational
utilisation of valuable resources. We encourage our employees
to save water and energy. For example, all lights and air
conditioners in the offices and retail stores must be turned off
after close of business in order to avoid waste of electricity. In
addition, in case of water leakage caused by damaged pipes,
we will repair such damaged pipes immediately to reduce
waste of valuable portable water resources.

Meanwhile, we instill such concept to enhance employees’
environmental awareness and encourage them to recycle used
materials such as envelopes and waste paper as much as
possible.

Environment and Natural Resources

Although our business will not have a material impact on
the environment and natural resources, we still abide by
the relevant environmental laws in Hong Kong and we will
take decisive remedial measures once we are aware of any
irregularities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities and other particulars of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
and financial position of the Group at that date are set out in
the consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 156.

The Directors do not recommend payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in the “Financial Summary"”,
“Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 5, pages 6 to 7 and pages 8 to 10
respectively of this Annual Report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the
environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill social
responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The Group has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of
the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on page 54 and note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws, and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s shares.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Ms. LI Xia (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. CHEN Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. LAM Tin Faat

Ms. LU Haina

Ms. NA Xin
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Pursuant Article 83(2) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any
time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy on the Board. Any Director so appointed by the Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. Pursuant to Article 84(2), any Director
appointed pursuant to Article 83(2) shall not be taken into
account in determining which particular Directors or the number
of Directors who are to retire by rotation.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Bye-laws of the Company, at each
annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that notwithstanding anything herein,
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. Mr. Chong Yu Ping, Ms. Li Xia and Ms. Na Xin will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and Senior Management
are set out on pages 40 to 42.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

=6 )

RIBARB 2 AFAAIFESI2) G - EFEAET
BEERZETAALARES  UEAREESR
Rk o M T ABEEERE2EMNESTZE
HEEARA TERRBFAEAIL @ ERERE
HEERNZAEG LEEEE - RIBEFSAQME -
EXZeRBEESBAGRETENENESEEEHE
RENBEESTREZTHERTEZRENA -

RBARF 2 ARARIESAG - REEBRBF
REgL EREEZ=2"EF(AWEFAH
VI=sk=2F&  ARREOETIR=0—
ZEBE)ARESTR  BEEAXEEAHRE
BERREVB=FRE-R - HET XL - FTE
LERBFLLEREERRBFAE LHES
RRETRERBEREBEEL -

EENGREEAEREE

EXELAEEABBRENFEI0HEFLI2E -

EEZRBEL

BN EERRAFAS LRI ER EEHER
ARRHEEFAMBARITER —FANTE
B ORERERIN MR L Z RIERREEL

28 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and
their associates in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rule 5.46
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “GEM Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company

EERIFETBAERERFAZR
7 - HERORESPEHEREZERER

I B
RE

RZFE—ARF+_A=+—H8 BREAQRER
FBHEMEGEO([FHRBEKRD ) E3521ER
EHEEBZERMATE  NRBEFEBAEISAT
BRAB(ERZA ) BIZERES LR A A2
R EMRE ) ELA6IGL T ARR BRI 2B
o ARREERFETBRABRESEZHEA
TRARRE R EBEEE 2D - BERDIE
SFhiEBFEZESRARNT ¢

RAAREREEICGEIEERZHR

Number of ordinary shares held

REEBERYE
Percentage of
Held by the issued
Beneficial Held controlled share capital
Name of Director Owner by family corporation Total of the Company
HEAXEERT
E=ns BREFA MRKEHE HSEQARRE Bt BRAB D
Mr. CHONG Yu Ping  #{EF5E4 - - 304,815,204 304,815,204 25.65%
(appointed on 17 February 2016) (Note 1)
(R=F—NF-A+t+HEZHF) (Hfzt1)
Ms. LI Xia FERL - - 304,815,204 304,815,204 25.65%
(Note 1)
(Hfzt1)
Mr. CHEN Yin BRE % E - - 110,303,827 110,303,827 9.28%
(Note 2)
(Hrit2)
TRFER HEERERERATE 29
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

of the Company (Continued)

Notes:

(1)

2)

These shares were held by Sino Eminent Limited. Sino Eminent
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands,
is owned as to 25% by Ocean Expert Investments Limited and
75% by Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd (“Shenzhen Yihua”),
a company incorporated in the PRC which is held as to 80% by
Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Accordingly, Mr. Chong Yu Ping is deemed
to be interested in 312,606,140 shares held by Sino Eminent
Limited by virtue of Sino Eminent Limited being controlled
by Mr. Chong Yu Ping through his shareholding in Shenzhen
Yihua. Ocean Expert Investments Limited is a limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly
owned by Ms. Li Xia. Ms. Li Xia is deemed to be interested in
312,606,140 shares held by Sino Eminent Limited by virtue of
Sino Eminent Limited being controlled by Ms. Li Xia through her
shareholding in Ocean Expert Investments Limited and through
her acting as the sole director of Sino Eminent Limited.

These shares were held by Flourish Zone Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chen Yin.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as at 31 December 2016.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2016, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests and short positions in the issued

share capital of the Company.

FERR

RZF

—RNE+TZA=t—RH BEARFER

o RHERPIFEI6IHRTE 2 T BB RAMA
& TIBRREHAGARARARREHETHRA
hEAREERNORE -

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of the

Notes shares held Company

EARAT

BECRT BRITRE

Name of Shareholder RREE et EEREA Epalsd

Sino Eminent Limited EZRERAA 1 304,815,204 25.65%

RITEEREEHRNHERAA RIMEEREEHRHERRF 1 304,815,204 25.65%

(Shenzhen Yihua Jewelry Co., Ltd)

Ocean Expert Investments Limited BRREBRAR 1 304,815,204 25.65%

Ms. LI Xia FEUT 1 304,815,204 25.65%

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping HEYEE 1 304,815,204 25.65%

Flourish Zone Limited B ER AR 2 110,303,827 9.28%

Mr. CHEN Yin REL4E 2 110,303,827 9.28%

Confluence Holdings Limited &R AR AR 3 91,034,166 7.65%

Mr. LIN Di M4 < 91,034,166 7.65%

CK Hutchison Holdings Limited RIMNTEXERAA 4 143,233,151 12.05%

Alps Mountain Agent Limited Alps Mountain Agent Limited 4 71,969,151 6.06%

iBusiness Corporation Limited EREEBRAT 4 67,264,000 5.66%
Notes: Htat -

(1) These shares have been disclosed as Directors’ interests held by (1) ZERGEUEIEFERFEZTHRABRERALZ

controlled corporation in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company”.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

(2) Flourish Zone Limited is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Yin. Accordingly,
Mr. Chen Yin is deemed to be interested in the 110,303,827
shares interested by Flourish Zone Limited.

(3) Confluence Holdings Limited is a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Lin Di.
Accordingly, Mr. Lin Di is deemed to be interested in the
91,034,166 shares interested by Confluence Holdings Limited.

(4) CK Hutchison Holdings Limited (“CK Hutchison”) is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meetings of Alps Mountain Agent
Limited (“Alps”) and iBusiness Corporation Limited (“iBusiness”).
Accordingly, CK Hutchison is deemed to be interested in
143,233,151 shares of the Company of which 71,969,151 shares
are held by Alps and 67,264,000 shares are held by iBusiness
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of
any other interests or short positions in the issued share capital
of the Company at 31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was approximately 39% of
the Group's total turnover and the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 28% of the Group's turnover.

The aggregate purchases during the year attributable to the
Group’s five largest suppliers was approximately 56% of
the Group's total purchases and the Group’'s largest supplier
accounted for approximately 32% of the Group's total
purchases.

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest
in these major suppliers or customers.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement that enables the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s continuing connected transactions are mainly
transactions in respect of the sales of gold and jewellery and
purchase of showcases for the brand H< H.K. JEWELRY that
are made with companies in which certain Directors have
interests, such transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions (the “Continuing Connected Transactions”) under
the GEM Listing Rules.

On 30 December 2015, Golden HK Jewellery (Shenzhen)
Company Limited* (“Golden HK Jewellery”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Master Agreement
I, Master Agreement Il, Master Agreement Il and Master
Agreement IV with Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited*
(“Baidi Jewellery”), Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union
Investment Company Limited* (“Zhong Chuang”), Shenzhen
Didi Jewellery Culture Development Company Limited* (“Didi
Culture”) and Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Company
Limited* (“Didi Showcases"”). The aforementioned continuing
connected transactions will expire on 31 December 2018.

On 31 December 2015, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company
Limited* (“Shenzhen Yihua"”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and Golden HK Jewellery entered into the framework
leasing agreement (the “Framework Leasing Agreement”),
pursuant to which Shenzhen Yihua as the lessor has agreed to
lease the office premises owned by Shenzhen Yihua to Golden
HK Jewellery as the lessee for the purpose of Golden HK
Jewellery conducting its daily operation.

*  For identification purpose only
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING ESRFEBEXRZZMz=@)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Transactions X5
Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2016 2015
Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms —E-R"E C—Z—1F
(a) & B 28 HK$°000 HK$'000
RZHER REME (b) HBFR TER FET
1) Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company  Sales of gold and Master Agreement | 217 S
Limited ("Baidi Jewellery”) jewellery products (a) 30 December 2015
(Note 2) HEESRIKEEmM  (b) 1 January 2016 -
MNBEEKERRAR ([ BEKE]) 31 December 2018
(Hf7z2) Bl
(a) ZE—RF+=-A=1H
b) ZE—R"E—-H—HE
—Z-\+-A=+—H
(I Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union  Sales of gold and Master Agreement || - 1,217
Investment Company Limited jewellery products (a) 30 December 2015
(“Zhong Chuang”) (Note 1) HERSMWKEEMR  (b) 1 January 2016 -
AT RS REBRAR 31 December 2018
(TH&ID (Hztr) Al

(@) “E—RF+-HA=1H
b) ZF—R"F—-A—HE
- N\F+ZA=+—H
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ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING ESREFEBEXRZ 2Mm=m@)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Nature of (a) Date of Agreement 2016 2015
Name of counterparties transactions (b) Terms —E-R"E C—Z—I1F
(a) % B 28 HK$°000 HK$'000
XZHER REME (b) HFR TER FET
() Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Culture Purchase of Master Agreement II 29 282
Development Company Limited packaging (a) 30 December 2015
("Didi Culture”) (Note 2) materials for (b) 1 January 2016 -
A mARE UL ERERAF the jewellery 31 December 2018
(Fd|sb D (at2) products Bzl
BERBEMLBE (@ ZF—AF+=A=1H
Lupe: b) ZE—R"F-HA—HE
—E-\F+-A=+—H
(IV)  Hangzhou Didi Commercial Purchase of Master Agreement IV 124 326
Showcases Company Limited showcases for the  (a) 30 December 2015
("Didi Showcases") (Note 2) brand (b) 1 January 2016 -
MMmEEEEAARAR maE  [FIHKJEWELRY 31 December 2018
B 1)(Ha2) BEHH 4588 agmv
ez EE (a) ZF—RF+=A="H
b) ZE—R"E—-A—HZE
—2-\F+-HA=t—H
(V) Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Operating lease Framework Leasing Agreement 2,252 1,674
Limited (“Shenzhen Yihua") (Note charges on (a) 31 December 2015
3) land and building (b) 1 January 2015 -
RIMEEGHESHRMERAFADE IHREFLELEHES 31 December 2017
YIBE ) (fi23) A EXRHERS

o ~F-EF+=A=t-H
bl =®-EF-A-AZ
—2—tFt=A=t-A
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Relationship between Connected Parties

Notes:

(1) Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the brother of Ms. Li Xia.
Accordingly, Zhong Chuang is an associate of Ms. Li Xia, and
hence a connected person of the Company under Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

(2) Baidi Jewellery, Didi Culture and Didi Showcases is respectively
owned as to 90%, 65% and 80% by Hangzhou Didi Investment
Joint Stock Company Limited, which in turn is owned as to 10%
and 90% by Mr. Lin Di and his father respectively. Therefore,
each of Baidi Jewellery, Didi Packaging and Didi Showcases is
an associate of Mr. Lin Di, and hence a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. Lin
Di resigned as an executive Director on 30 October 2015.

(3) Shenzhen Yihua is a substantial shareholder of the Company
holding approximately 26.30% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 and is owned as to 80% by
Mr. Chong Yu Ping. Mr. Chong Yu Ping was appointed as an
executive Director on 17 February 2016.

Therefore, transactions under Master Agreement (l) to (V)
above constitute Continuing Connected Transactions of this
Company under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The above Continuing Connected Transactions under the New
Master Agreement (I) to (IV) and the Framework Leasing
Agreement are subject to various annual cap amounts disclosed
in the Company’'s announcement dated 30 December 2015.
Capitalised terms used in this section shall have the same
meanings as those defined in the above announcement unless
specified otherwise.

EERFERERZ 2 Mm@

i

EEER 2BI%

Hrat

(1)

2)

(3)

ES)l:d

FRIBFELLZIIITEE % o Bt -
FEIRFELRLZHEA - HIREEIZER LT
HAIE=—+E ARARFZHEAL -

BB E - XL R EA S B BN
H&ﬁ&ﬁﬁ@ NAIFEBI0% ~ 65% K80% 1
b i 1 A AR 17 B IR 2 7] Al B AR 5E
i&ﬁ:ﬁaﬁﬁ/ﬁgﬁmwﬁgo%%ﬂ o AUt - B
HHKE - @L@§&@@EEWﬁ¢¢@%$Z
WA - HIRIFBIZR FTTRAE=1E A
BARRG]ZBEANL - HHEALER-F— 'ﬁfﬁ
+A=+HEHIHTESE -

FWNEEBARNAZEERE  FHL LA
R-ZFE—AFE+-_A=+—HAEETREH
26.30% - WG TFHEEFHESO%RE i1
FBFAEERZE—NF_A++LAEZTAH
TEE -

CREBAIEREMRUE—+F - LR

BNEIVETZRIBUARARB ZFHERBER

% o

ERURI NN
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%EEQ@?&%XEETEEVJ:FE fr =B AL
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ESEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Opinion of the Independent Non-executive Directors

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the Company's independent non-executive
Directors who have confirmed that: (i) the terms and conditions
of each of the Continuing Connected Transactions are on
normal commercial terms that are fair and reasonable so
far as the independent shareholders are concerned; (ii) the
respective proposed annual caps for the Continuing Connected
Transactions for the three years ending 31 December 2018 are
fair and reasonable so far as the independent shareholders are
concerned; and (iii) the Continuing Connected Transactions are
conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders
as a whole.

Opinion of the Auditor

The Company’s Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
Continuing Connected Transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has issued
an unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the Continuing Connected Transactions disclosed
by the Group above in accordance with Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Auditor has reported to the Directors
that the above Continuing Connected Transactions: (1) have
received the approval of the Board; (2) are in accordance with
the pricing policies of the Company; (3) have been carried out
in accordance with the relevant provisions of the agreements
governing the transactions; and (4) have not exceeded the
relevant annual caps.

ZE—RFFEW

EERFERERZ 2 Mm@

BYFHITESZER

ARBVBEYIFFNTEFTEEH XN AA R
BREXZHAIER : (1 BSFERERS ZHKK
R TE—RAEEIGRHREIL - ABURRMEE
BATEE: (EBEZZE—N\F+=ZA=+—8
T=BAFERAZRHERERSEEAFELR -
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NERBIR 2 B -

BB 2RR
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ESEHRE

OTHER CONNECTED AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A

HttBEELSRBELSXS

2016 2015
Name of counterparty Nature of transactions —E-R"E —Z—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000
REHE® XEMHE THET AT
- Excel Technology International  Professional fee received 29,063 16,737
(Hong Kong) Limited EREXER
("Excel HK") (Notes 1) Professional fee paid 7,812 4,331
- TERERER (BB AR EREXER
AR([FBEE]) Purchase of complementary 1,281 1,905
(Fis1) hardware and software
BERERMREMY
Administration expenses 960 350
reimbursements (Net paid)
THRAXHE(EMEE)
Note: it -

Excel HK has become an associate since 27 May 2015 and is ultimately
50% owned by Ms. Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy, a director of the
Company’s subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

At 31 December 2016, none of the Directors, the management
shareholders or their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) had an interest in a business which causes
or may cause significant competition with the business of the
Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is any permitted indemnity provision being force
for the benefit of any directors of the Company (whether made
by the Company or otherwise) or of its associated company (made
by the Company).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

All the Directors do not have any financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship with each other.

EBEEE —E—nF AT LtAEKRBHELA] I
HAREINE R A EFGFRERL L REIEFL0% 1

25 o

EENGREMRE 2R

R=ZF—XR"F+=-A=+—H0 E=F  TEER
RABEESAZHEAL(TERAIZEIR ETR
BNBEER R ASK AT RE A EBE S EKEARF
ZEBTHE TR -

BEFFHRERX

RAFEARERBEARSE BB/ L EME
- BER GG 23R A (] A AR 0 2 R B 15 3L
BEARBSLEBRAANENER(THELRN
RAFIL) e
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38 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ESEHRE

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of
independence were received from each of the Company’s
independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and all Independent Non-executive
Directors are considered to be independent.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 11 August
2000 with written terms of reference in accordance with Rules
5.28 to 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Audit Committee
currently comprise three members — Mr. Lam Tin Faat, Ms.
Lu Haina and Ms. Na Xin, all of whom are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Lam Tin Faat is the chairman of the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee’s principal duties are
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control procedures of the Group. The Audit Committee
met on a quarterly basis during the year ended 31 December
2016.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good
corporate governance. Information on the corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report on pages 11 to 19.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping
Chairman

Hong Kong
17 March 2017

TN R

HEERZERARA R

KARIER  BERAIER EMREBIES.09(% -
BEARASEIYIFNTES 2B Y HEFEER
EZ AU EBIIERTESHWIEABILA
j: o

BitZES

RIEAIER ETARAEL 288 EF5.2916 218
T ARRERZ-ZZEEZFNA+ BRI EH
ZEE  WHUEEHITHBEEE - BiZES
BH=MEZIERTESMRE LA  BEEHK
TR ARBT ZZ EFTAERK o Mﬂ%%ﬁff‘ai%%”@,\a
ZEF  BHZEGCCEETIEAR iéﬁiﬁﬁgz&
EBZUBRE TR UARAIDEE &F HE

FT-AF+-A=t-BLEER  BHERER
EREESTEH

RAABRERE
BEEARARTREGERRBEERD - WA

FHREH  ARAFREBTRFAEHED25%HR
RHE -

TEER

ARBBORIRTFZEEER - BEARRIK
M2 EEERTHRFBINRENAEZFE 198 21
%E/Diﬁim

ZELEm

FEERRREFAS LBREEBEFTZERR(E

)BT EBIARA AR AIZEEN 2 RE

e

RREZE

HEFEE
FE

0
—tF=A+tH

39



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREREBEAEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHONG Yu Ping, also known as Mr. Zhuang
Ruping (Age 51)

Chairman

Mr. Chong is the Chairman of the Company, who is responsible
for leading the work of the Board and setting operation direction
and investment strategies for the Company. Mr. Chong has
over 20 years of relevant experience in the jewellery and
investment industry. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Chong
has been appointed as the general manager and executive
Director of a private company, Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery
Limited* and from 2011 to present, he is the director and legal
representative of Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Limited, a company
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company as disclosed
under the section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the
Directors’ Report included herein. Mr. Chong was appointed as
an executive Director and as the Chairman of the Company on
17 February 2016.

Ms. LI Xia (Age 43)

Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Li is the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, who
is responsible for the corporate planning and business
development of the Company. Ms. Li served in Shanghai
Shenggqiu Investment Development Limited*, and was appointed
as executive vice president with her experience and strength
in jewellery industry. Ms. Li was responsible for administration
and human resource management, marketing operations and
brand promotion. With her leadership, the company achieved
a healthy growth. At the same time, Ms. Li also served as
the special-commissioned jewellery operating adviser for Baidi
Jewellery to lead the company to achieve excellent results,
which made her the veteran in the jewellery business. Ms. Li
graduated from Central Luzon State University, Republic of the
Philippines with a degree of Bachelor of Science in Business
Administration. Ms. Li has been an Executive Director of the
Group since 3 July 2012. During the year ended 31 December
2015, Ms. Li was the Chairman and as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. And Ms. Li resigned as the Chairman
of the Company on 17 February 2016.

*  For identification purpose only
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREREBEAEEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. CHEN Yin (Age 35)

Mr. Chen is an entrepreneur in the Mainland China, who
held senior positions in various private companies principally
engaged in luxury goods trading business. Mr. Chen obtained
the Diploma of Graduate Gemologist, Diploma of Diamonds and
Diploma of Colored Stones from the Gemological Institute of
America (“GIA"). Mr. Chen has been as an Executive Director
of the Group since 3 July 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Tin Faat (Age 41)

Mr. Lam holds a bachelor degree of business administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has more
than 10 years of experience in financial audit, accounting and
financial management. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and a
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. Mr. Lam is also the sole proprietor of TF Lam &
Company, a CPA practice in Hong Kong, and a director of Top
Team Secretary Limited. Mr. Lam has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.

Ms. LU Haina (Age 38)

Ms. Lu possesses over 8 years of experience in education in
relation to jewellery design. From 2005 to 2010, Ms. Lu taught at
the school of jewellery of Guangzhou Panyu Polytechnic. Since
2010, Ms. Lu has been teaching at Guangzhou International
Economics College. Ms. Lu graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University
with a bachelor degree in arts and design and is a holder of a
jewellery designer certificate verified by All-China Federation of
Industry & Commerce. Ms. Lu has been an independent Non-
executive Director of the Group since 3 July 2012.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREREBEAEEBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. NA Xin (Age 36)

[,

Ms. Na was the chief operating officer of FIITHNEXKREE
#iA PR /2] (Shenzhen Jiuha Cai Jewellery Co., Ltd), a company
specialized in qualified jewellery trading business from 2008
to 2012. She was an assistant to chief executive officer for
Little Sheep North America (Vancouver) Branch (/NEZFdE3E
CBRETE ) D2 Al from 2012 to 2013. Ms. Na completed her
Bachelor's degree in English in the School of Humanities and
Social Science of Beijing Jiaotong University (formerly known
as the Northern Jiaotong University) in 2003. Ms. Na has been
an independent non-executive Director of the Group since
1 December 2014.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng (Age 34)

Authorised Representative, Compliance Officer and Company
Secretary

Mr. Zhao was appointed as the authorised representative,
compliance officer and company secretary of the Company on
30 June 2015. Mr. Zhao is currently a registered solicitor of
the High Court of Hong Kong. He holds the Bachelor degree
of laws (PRC Law) awarded by The East China University of
Political Science and Law. He was awarded the Master of Laws
in Common Law by The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2007 and the Juris Doctor degree by the City University of
Hong Kong in 2009 respectively. Further, in 2011, Mr. Zhao
was awarded the Postgraduate Certificate in Laws by the City
University of Hong Kong.

Dr. CHU Junying (Age 54)

Legal Consultant

Dr. Chu received a doctorate degree from Yunnan University.
She served as a lecturer in university for 29 years. She
became a qualified lawyer in 1994. She specialises in civil and
commercial law and is familiar with the legal matters before and
after listing. She worked as a legal consultant in various large-
scale enterprises in Mainland China and is currently served as
the Company's legal consultant.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBENRE

Q Grant Thornton
2[5

To the members of Yu Tak International Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yu
Tak International Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 49 to 156, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”),
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

and we have
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

A key audit matter is identified in our audit as follows:

Determination of the net realisable values of
inventories

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note
2.10, critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 4.1
and the disclosure of inventories in note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How the matter was
Key Audit Matter addressed in our audit
As at 31 December 2016,
the Group held inventories of
HK$37,994,000.

Our audit procedures to the
determination of net realisable
values of inventories included
the following:

Inventories are carried at
the lower of cost and net e
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realisable value. In determining
net realisable value, judgement
is applied by the management
to assess estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated
costs of completion and
applicable selling expenses.

We considered this as key audit
matter due to (i) the significance
of inventories (representing
25% of total assets) and the
involvement of management
judgement and estimation.

44

reviewing the historical
ageing of inventories;

e reviewing, assessing and
testing the basis and
reasonableness about
determination of the
net realisable values of
inventories; and

e testing, on a sample basis,
selling price of inventories
being sold subsequent to
the end of reporting date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEARE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report of the Company, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEARE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determined those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

17 March 2017

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEakEtEERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &

E-F-AFFZAS+—AILEE

T+ —=

2016 2015
“E-RE —ZE-h%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
fiE TER FAEL
Revenue KA 3 104,367 174,741
Other income Hib iz 7 2,280 5,353
Change in inventories FEE® (5,912) 15,571
Purchase of goods BEER (13,656) (61,668)
Professional fee HEEH (17,723) (19,239
Employee benefits expense EERMAX 12 (85,520) (111,456)
Depreciation and amortisation ER#H (2,312) (3,675)
Impairment loss on property, ¥  BERRERESE
plant and equipment 14 (2,891) -
Other expenses Hipx (22,671) (30,760)
Finance costs HBER 8 (176) (368)
Share of result of an associate e —MBENREE 16 (1,651) (1,490)
Loss before income tax HBRFREHAER 9 (45,865) (32,991)
Income tax expense PG HF X 10 (390) (1,566)
Loss for the year FREE (46,255) (34,557)
Other comprehensive expense FREHBREz 2 HA L
for the year, after tax*
ltems that will be reclassified HigesmpBEiaaR2AE ¢
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange loss on translation of financial — HBE/FINEKBI B REROE R,
statements of foreign operations &8 (2,351) (5,178)
Total comprehensive expense FR2EMXEE
for the year (48,606) (39,735)
Loss for the year attributable to: EREREE :
Owners of the Company ARAEEA (42,763) (28,467)
Non-controlling interests IR RS (3,492) (6,090)
(46,255) (34,557)
Total comprehensive expense EE2ERXEE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company AREEB A (45,247) (33,559)
Non-controlling interests FEE R s (3,359) (6,176)
(48,606) (39,735)
Loss per share for loss attributable to ERAREAFRAELBRES
owners of the Company during the year
- Basic and diluted —EARREE 1" (HK3.60 centsi&fll)  (HK2.40 centsyEfll)

*

There is no tax effect on the component of other comprehensive

expense for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The notes on pages 55 to 156 are
consolidated financial statements.

an integral part of these

T RNFEFH

* BE-_ZT—XREER-_ZT—AF+-A=+—H
IEEFEHEMEEASNARSHIELEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR R 3R

as at 31 December 2016 R—ZFE—NF+_-HA=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-AF —E-nF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE THET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NGB 14 913 6,562
Interest in an associate NG ) AN o ey 16 17,494 40,051
Available-for-sale financial assets REESHEE 17 - -
Goodwill EES 18 - -
Development costs EREIIN 19 - _
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 30 = -
18,407 46,613
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T8 20 37,994 43,906
Amounts due from customers EREFALHTERA
for contract work 21 4,767 25,842
Trade receivables EWE Z R 22 14,016 23,686
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments E A EWKIE - ke RTER B 23 17,072 22,413
Cash and cash equivalents BeREESZEY 25 24,507 33,563
98,356 149,410
Assets of a disposal company classified as D AFEHE Y, —HHE
held for sale NSy 26(a) 33,027 -
131,383 149,410
Current liabilities TBaE
Trade payables BB SRR 27 566 24,404
Other payables and accrued charges Hib B ZIBENTBIRE A 28 25,311 29,886
Borrowings EE 29 = 4,098
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEFEA L IIZFIA 21 3,015 3,277
Amounts due to directors ENEEHIE 31 15,046 9,552
Tax payables FEfTHIE = 750
43,938 71,966
Liabilities of a disposal company DEABENEZ —RLE
classified as held for sale NEIBE 26(b) 30,401 -
74,339 71,966
Net current assets REBEEFE 57,044 77,444
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERRDEE 75,451 124,057
Net assets BEEFE 75,451 124,057
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

E B IR R 3R

as at 31 December 2016 R-E— N NF+_-_HA=+—H

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-h8F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiE FHET FHET
EQUITY

Share capital 32 118,846 118,846
Reserves 33 (38,747) 6,776

Equity attributable to owners A TEE AEERE
of the Company 80,099 125,622
Non-controlling interests (4,648) (1,565)
Total equity 75,451 124,057

Li Xia Chong Yu Ping HET
Director

The notes on pages 55 to 156 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—EB-AF —T-hfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
By &E FTET FHT
Cash flows from operating activities RELLTH2RERE
Loss before income tax MK B R A EE (45,865) (32,991)
Adjustments for: E
Depreciation e 2,312 3,675
Net loss/(gain) on disposal/written off of HE/MEDE  BMEERREZ
property, plant and equipment FER/ () 4 (2)
Impairment loss on property, M - BERZEZRESE
plant and equipment 14 2,891 -
Fair value gain on financial assets BARBEMABERZ
at fair value through profit or loss eREEZARBEKS - (1,477)
Interest expenses FBFAX 176 368
Provision for and write down of inventories & ##E RHMEE
to net realisable value AIEIR R 1,312 647
Dividend income % B e - (507)
Interest income B (786) (1,184)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHRBAR 2 EBE 36 — 258
Reversal of provision for and write down TF & B KU 2 o] 5
of inventories (2,117) -
Share of result of an associate [ —EEE AR EE 1,651 1,490
Currency translation adjustment HNFE 3, A o 2 2,168 (2,524)
Operating loss before working capital EEECEPR v EEER
changes (38,254) (32,247)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories TERL/(Em) 4,394 (17,567)
Decrease in amounts due from customers  EWE P4 4 TR FIEH
for contract work 3,576 13,081
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables JEUWE SR (3 ) /Fib (1,350) 17,113
(Increase)/Decrease in other receivables, Hib e IR - e RIBMNZIE
deposits and prepayments (&), (1,169) 2,100
Decrease in financial assets at fair value BRALBEFABGRIEHE
through profit or loss ERD = 131
Decrease in trade payables FERTE 5 BRFUR (2,304) (5,710)
Increase/(Decrease) in other payables and Hi B RIBIEE RN,
accrued charges (E) 6,636 (3,205)
Increase/(Decrease) in amounts due to ENEEAGIRRELEN,
customers for contract work CRA) 187 (2,912)
Cash used in operations TEXBAZRE (28,284) (29,216)
Interest paid BERAFE (1,306) =
Income tax paid BRETEH (1,234) (501)
Net cash used in operating activities S FBNFTH 2 F R (30,824) (29,717)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

for the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z —E— NF+-HA=1+—HI F/ZF

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-RF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
By &E FTET FHT
Cash flows from investing activities RERETH2REFE
Repayment from/(Advance to) an associate ~ —E#E R AIMER,
(M—MEEERaER) 20,906 (3,195)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B EW¥ - MERHEE (773) (889)
Repayment of loans to an investee company [A—BHRERATEEER 2,896 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - MEMRETERE
plant and equipment 7 7
Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary H&—RIEBRRZRE R FEE 36 - (22,508)
Dividend received RE ) - 507
Interest received BUHIE 3,031 220
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities — & ZBEL ()2 HE F58 26,067 (25,858)
Cash flows from financing activities REBETE EERE
Repayment of other borrowings BEAMEER (2,896) =
Increase in amounts due to directors FETE S FIAE N 5,494 4,197
Net cash from financing activities BETEEL T FHR 2,598 4,197
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents & RREZEBY 2R EHE (2,159) (51,378)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—BA—RAZRENEEZEEY 33,563 86,872
Effect on foreign exchange rate changes, EXEBEMFRE 2 TE
on cash held (1,363) (1,931)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=B=+-—H
31 December, represented by cash and ZEERBLEEY -
bank balances MRS RBITER 30,041 33,563
Analysis of balances of cash and cash BEeRASEBYNEHIN
equivalents:
Cash and bank balances BHE MRTHER 24,507 33,563
Cash and cash balances classified as assets D ABEHE Y —BHHERFE
of a disposal company classified as held E2BRe REFTFER(HIE26()
for sale (note 26(a)) 5,534 -
30,041 33,563

The notes on pages 55 to 156 are an integral part of these S$55EHFEF 1568 N TEKILEHEAMBRE
consolidated financial statements. B — 1D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

WA |
v 9 *E
for the year ended 31 December 2016 &

\/ﬁ-‘-

1 &

FE) =

2-E—

NETZA=+—HILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RORERARLRE
Non-
Share Share  Exchange Capital  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve* losses* Total interests Total equity
R&  ROEE*  MERE  ERRR  EHER BR FEREE  RESE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000
TEn T#n TEn TR Th7n TR ThR TR
Balance at 1 January 2015 RZE-1F-F-AiER 118846 220438 6418 - (186521) 159,181 4611 163,792
Loss for the year EREE S = - - (28467)  (28,467) (6,090)  (34557)
Other comprehensive expense AhZERR
Exchange loss on translation of financial ~ REBNERIERERNEL B
statements of foreign operations - - (5,092) - - (5,092 (86) (5,178)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FA2EEXAE S - 5,002) - (28467)  133,559) (6176)  139,735)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R=Z-1%5t-f=1-A
and 1 January 2016 k=%5-~E-f-RHGH 118846 220438 1326 - (n4988) 12562 (1,565) 124,057
Acquisition of adcitional interests in a BA-FHEBLA BoMER
subsidiary (note 15/a) (Hi3E15(a)) - - - (276) - (276) 276 -
Transactions with owners EREARG - - - (276) - (276) 276 -
Loss for the year EhEE - - - - (763 (42763 (3492)  (46,255)
Other comprehensive expense Ath2ARY
Exchange loss on translation of financial ~ AZENERSKRENELER
statements of foreign operations - - (2,484) - - (2,484) 133 (2,351)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FR2AEXAE - - (2484) - (42,763) (45,241) (3,359) (48,606)
Balance at 31 December 2016 RoE-AETZA=T-BMER 118,846 220438 (1,158) (276)  (257,751) 80,09 (4,648) 75,451
& These reserves accounts comprise the Group's deficit of  * ZERERBREASVMBEMR A RAARNE B E4LL

HK$38,747,000 (2015: Group's reserves of HK$6,776,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The notes on pages 55 to 156 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Yu Tak International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company
with limited liability. The address of its registered office
is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and, its principal place of business is Hong
Kong. The Company's shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (the “"GEM") of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company, an investment holding company, and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the development, sale and implementation
of enterprise software and the provision of systems
integration and professional services, design and sales
of gold and jewellery products and investment holding.
The Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong and the
People’s Republic of China (the "PRC").

The financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 17 March 2017.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and the accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

The financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”).
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and their
impact on the Group's financial statements, if any,
are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial
assets which are stated at fair values. A disposal
company held for sale is stated at the lower of
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
The measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power over the
entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when
the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group's
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts
or fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of the
related assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred directly to retained earnings). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any
impairment loss unless the subsidiary is held for
sale or included in a disposal group. Cost includes
directly attributable costs of investment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All
dividends whether received out of the investee's
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in
the Company’s profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combination

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair
values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and
the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition—-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If,
after assessment, the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair
value on the acquirer’'s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence, which is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control of those policies.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Associates (Continued)

In the consolidated financial statements, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised
at cost and subsequently accounted for using
the equity method. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill.
The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for
impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
instruments issued by the Group, plus any costs
directly attributable to the investment. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group’s share
of the associate’s profit or loss in the period in
which the investment is acquired.

Under the equity method, the Group's interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for
the post-acquisition changes in the group’s share
of the associate’s net assets less any identified
impairment loss, unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale). The profit or loss for
the year includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for
the year, including any impairment loss on the
investment in associate recognised for the year.
The Group’s other comprehensive income for the
year includes its share of the associate's other
comprehensive income for the year.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

—NEF+ZH=+—HIFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &£ — &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate.
Where unrealised losses on assets sales between
the Group and its associate are reversed on equity
accounting, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Where
the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances, adjustments are made,
where necessary, to conform the associate’s
accounting policies to those of the Group when
the associate’s financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group's share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate
is the carrying amount of the investment under
the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise
an additional impairment loss on the Group's
investment in its associate. At each reporting
date, the Group determines whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in
associate is impaired. If such indications are
identified, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as being the difference between the
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate
and its carrying amount. In determining the value
in use of the investment, the Group estimates its
share of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows expected to be generated by the
associate, including cash flows arising from the
operations of the associate and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Associates (Continued)

The Group discontinues the use of equity method
from the date when it ceases to have significant
influence over an associate. If the retained interest
in that former associate is a financial asset, the
retained interest is measured at fair value, which
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
as a financial asset in accordance with HKAS 39.
The difference between (i) the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a partial interest in the associate; and (ii) the
carrying amount of the investment at the date the
equity method was discontinued, is recognised
in the profit or loss. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would have been
required if the associate had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore,
if a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by the investee would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as
a reclassification adjustment) when the equity
method is discontinued.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

—NEF+ZH=+—HIFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &£ — &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign operation on or after
1 January 2005 have been treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated
into HK$ at the closing rates. Goodwill arising on
the acquisitions of foreign operations before 1
January 2005 is translated at the foreign exchange
rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the
foreign operation.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e.
a disposal of the Group’'s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of
control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation),
all of the accumulated exchange differences in
respect of that operation attributable to the Group
are reclassified to profit or loss. Any exchange
differences that have previously been attributed
to non-controlling interests are derecognised, but
they are not reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5

2.6

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the case of a partial disposal (i.e. no loss of
control) of a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised in
profit or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e.
of associates or joint ventures not involving a
change of accounting basis), the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange differences is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Leasehold improvements 20 to 33'/3%

Computer and office equipment 10 to 50%
Furniture and fixtures 20 to 25%
Motor vehicles 25 to 30%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in the profit or loss.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognised. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to
the profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is
recognised as an asset at the date that control
is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodwill is
measured as the excess of the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the Group's interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units (“CGUs") and is tested annually
for impairment (see note 2.20).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of
gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

Development costs

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in profit or loss as they occur. Costs
that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

(i) demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(ii) there is an intention to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group’'s ability to use or sell the
intangible asset is demonstrated;

(iv) the intangible asset will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and

(vi)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible
asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs include employee costs incurred on
development activities along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are recognised as intangible
assets. They are subject to the same subsequent
measurement method as acquired intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.8

2.9

Development costs (Continued)

After initial recognition of the development costs,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. Amortisation commences
when the intangible assets are available for use.
The following useful lives are applied:
Capitalised development costs 3 years
The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as
described below in note 2.20.

Financial assets

The Group's accounting policies for financial
assets other than interest in subsidiaries are set
out below.

Financial assets are classified into the following
categories:

- Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

- Loans and receivables
- Available-for-sale financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. If any such evidence exists, an
impairment loss is determined and recognised
based on the classification of the financial asset.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss include financial assets held for
trading.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of
short-term profit-taking.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —=F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

(iii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions.
The fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest
income is recognised in accordance with
the Group's policies in note 2.18 to these
consolidated financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.
Interest is recognised in profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Non-derivative financial assets that do not
qualify for inclusion in any of the other
categories of financial assets are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

—NEF+ZH=+—HIFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% — =

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

All financial assets within this category are
subsequently measured at fair value. Gain or
loss arising from a change in the fair value
excluding any dividend and interest income
is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the
investment revaluation reserve in equity,
except for impairment losses (see the policy
below) and foreign exchange gains and
losses on monetary assets, until the financial
asset is derecognised, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated
using the effective interest method is
recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary
assets denominated in a foreign currency
is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of
reporting period. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that
result from a change in amortised cost of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss,
and other changes are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the
end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, financial
assets other than at fair value through profit or
loss are reviewed to determine whether there is
any objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one or
more of the following loss events:

- Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- A breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- It becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- Significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor;

- The disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; and

- A significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss
is measured and recognised as follows:

(i)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in
the profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed to the extent
that it does not result in a carrying amount
of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of
the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

—NFEFZA=+—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —=F

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(if)

(iii)

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an
available-for-sale financial asset has
been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity and
there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss
as an impairment loss. That amount is
measured as the difference between the
asset’s acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale
and stated at fair value are not recognised
in the profit or loss. The subsequent
increase in fair value is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Financial assets carried at cost

The amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset.
The amount of the impairment losses is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in
which the impairment occurs and are not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.9

2.10

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses of financial assets other than
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and trade receivables that are stated at amortised
cost, are written off against the corresponding
assets directly. Where the recovery of trade
receivables is considered doubtful but not remote,
the impairment losses for doubtful receivables
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivables
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale equity
security increases in the remainder of an annual
period, or in a subsequent period, the increase is
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories, which comprise merchandise held
for resale, raw materials and finished goods, are
carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase
and, where applicable, other costs that have
been incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition, is determined
using the first in, first out method. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand and demand deposits with banks.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities mainly include trade
and other payables, amounts due to directors and
other borrowings. They are included in line items
in the consolidated statement of financial position
as trade payables, other payables and accrued
charges, amounts due to directors and borrowings
under current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
2.22).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit of loss.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Borrowings (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

Trade, other payables and amount due to directors

Trade, other payables and amount due to directors
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount, i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where
appropriate.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i)

(if)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals,
if any, are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions
are stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to
the equity transaction.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Non-current assets, or disposal groups

held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising
assets and liabilities, that are highly probable to
be recovered principally through sale rather than
through continuing use, are classified as held for
sale. Immediately before classification as held
for sale, the assets, or components of a disposal
group, are remeasured in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter generally
the assets, or disposal group, are measured at the
lower of their carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal
group first is allocated to goodwill, and then to
remaining assets and liabilities on pro rata basis,
except that no loss is allocated to inventories,
financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee
benefit assets, investment property or biological
assets, which continue to be measured in
accordance with the Group's accounting policies.
Impairment losses on initial classification as
held for sale and subsequent gains and losses
on remeasurement are recognised in profit or
loss. Gains are not recognised in excess of any
cumulative impairment loss.

Property, plant and equipment once classified as
held for sale or distribution are not amortised or
depreciated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods,
rendering of services and the use by others of
the Group's assets yielding interest, royalties and
dividends, net of rebates and discounts. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FTESTHRBE®)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued) 218 WARR(E)

Jewellery Products

Sales of gold and jewellery products are
recognised upon transfer of the significant risks
and rewards of ownership to the customer. This
is usually taken as the time when the goods are
delivered and the customer has accepted the
goods.

Franchise income in respect of the use of the
Group's brand is recognised on an accrual
basis over the terms of the relevant franchise
agreements.

IT Products and Services

In circumstances where the contract price can be
allocated on a reasonable basis to the elements
of resale of hardware and software products,
sales of software licences and development of
customised software, revenue is recognised as
described below:

(a) Revenue from resale of complementary hardware
and software products is recognised when the
goods are delivered and title has been passed;

(b) Revenue from sales of software licences is
recognised upon delivery of the software
products to the customer when there are no
post-delivery obligations;

(c) Revenue from the development of customised
software is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the customisation work
(including post-delivery service support) at the
end of the reporting period, as measured by
reference to services performed to date as a
percentage of total services to be performed
in relation to the design and prescribed
services as agreed with customers to be
rendered in different phases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —FE— NF+ - HA=1+—HI FEZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2. FESTHEMER)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued) 218 WARR(E)

IT Products and Services (Continued)

Where the contract price cannot be allocated into
individual elements of the sales of enterprise
software products and custom development,
revenue from sales of enterprise software
products and custom development is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the
sales of enterprise software products and custom
development (including post-delivery service
support) at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by reference to the costs incurred to
date as compared to the total costs to be incurred
under the transaction.

Maintenance service income is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the terms of the
relevant maintenance service contracts. Where
maintenance service income is not separately
invoiced, it is unbundled from licence fees and
deferred and recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant maintenance
service contracts.

Systems integration income and professional
services income are recognised when the services
are provided.

Other income

Consultancy and management fee income in
respect of technical support, consultancy services
and management services are recognised in the
period when services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

2.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19

2.20

Contract for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount. Costs
of rendering services comprise labour and other
costs of personnel directly engaged in providing
the services and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
based on the percentage of completion of the
transaction, provided that the revenue, the costs
incurred and the estimated costs to completion can
be measured reliably. The percentage of completion
is established by reference to the estimated stage of
completion (see note 2.18).

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon
as they are anticipated by management.

Where estimated value of work performed
exceeds progress billings, the surplus is treated
as an amount due from contract customers for
contract work.

Where progress billings exceed estimated value
of work performed, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to contract customers for contract
work.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The following assets are subject to impairment
testing:

2. XE

2.19

2.20

o Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary;
o Development costs;
° Property, plant and equipment; and
° The Company'’s interests in subsidiaries
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —=F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Goodwill and development costs with indefinite
useful lives or those not yet available for use
are tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they are impaired. All other assets are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset's carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generate cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result, some
assets are tested individually for impairment and
some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
Goodwill in particular is allocated to those cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose and is not larger than an
operating segment.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.20

2.21

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated,
are credited initially to the carrying amount of
goodwill. Any remaining impairment loss is
charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-
generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less cost of disposal, or value in use, if
determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the asset’'s recoverable amount
and only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill are not reversed
in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which the
interim period relates.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

—NFEFZA=+—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —=F

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21

2.22

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC, Malaysia and Singapore are
required to participate in the central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as employees rendered services
during the year. The Group’s obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment
income earned on the temporary investment
of the specific borrowings, for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying asset
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22

2.23

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are complete.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or prior
reporting period, that are unpaid at the end of the
reporting period. They are calculated according to
the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal
periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component
of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the end
of the reporting period between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit,
including existing taxable temporary differences,
will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and
unused tax credits can be utilised.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period the liability is settled or the asset realised,
provided they are enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if:

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(ii) different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

2.24 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group's major product and service
lines.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FTESTHRBE®)

2.24 Segment reporting (Continued) 224 THEHE)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

o Jewellery Products: design and sales of
gold and jewellery products

o IT Products and Services: provision of information
technology services and sales of products,
including enterprise software products, systems
integration and professional services

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried
out at arm’s length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 Operating
Segments are the same as those used in its
financial statements prepared under HKFRSs, except
that corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not included in arriving at the
operating results of the operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment and
are not allocated to a segment.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if:

(a) the party is a person, or a close member of
that person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a member
of a group of which the other entity is
a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the group or an entity related to
the group;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
or

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2016

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January
2016:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to

HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new and
amended HKFRSs had no material impact on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior
periods have been prepared and presented.

Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure Initiative

The Amendments are designed to further encourage
companies to apply professional judgement in
determining what information to disclose in their financial
statements. Furthermore, the Amendments clarify
that companies should use professional judgement in
determining where and in what order information is
presented in the financial disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2016 (Continued)

3.
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Amendments to HKAS 1: Disclosure Initiative (Continued) BB BEERIE 1552 (55T - HEEATE)(4E)
Specifically, the Amendments clarify (i) the materiality BEEEME @ ZF B RE(EBeED

requirements in HKAS 1, including an emphasis on
the potentially detrimental effect of obscuring useful
information with immaterial information; (i) clarify that
HKAS 1's specified line items in the statement(s) of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and the
statement of financial position can be disaggregated;
(i) add requirements for how an entity should present
subtotals in the statement(s) of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and the statement of financial
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position; (iv) clarify that entities have flexibility as to the BRESETEFIFARRNAIEES;
order in which they present the notes, but also emphasis HRRBEERIES -

that understandability and comparability should be
considered by an entity when deciding that order; and
(v) remove potentially unhelpful guidance in HKAS 1 for
identifying a significant accounting policy.

The Amendments also clarify that the share of other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method must be presented
in aggregate as a single line item, and classified between
those items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss.
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The Amendments have had no material impact on these HEEFTT ST eHSEEMEHmREL
consolidated financial statements. EFEEHFE o

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38: Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments introduce a rebuttable presumption ZE B HE RS XERFE 3853 W
to HKAS 38 that the use of revenue-based methods to W;ﬂ EILEERBW S AR E#E S

calculate the amortisation of an intangible asset is not
appropriate. This presumption can only be rebutted in
the limited circumstances in which the intangible asset
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is expressed as a measure of revenue or when revenue WEEZWHRERRAESEN S B ZH
and the consumption of the economic benefits of the B o ZEEEINBEREBEESGTERSF

intangible asset are highly correlated. The amendments
also prohibit the use of revenue-based methods to
calculate the depreciation of property, plant and machinery
under HKAS 16.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 3.
HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2016 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38: Clarification of

Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
(Continued)

The amendments have no material impact on these
consolidated financial statements as the Group has
not used revenue-based methods to calculate the
amortisation for its intangible assets and depreciation for
its property, plant and equipment.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments contained in this cycle of annual
improvements are detailed below:

(i) HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations”: provides guidance
when an entity reclassifies either an asset or
a disposal group from held for sale to held for
distribution (or vice versa), or when held for
distribution accounting is discontinued; and
clarifies that these types of changes in plans
do not result in a new classification but instead
lead to the same classification, presentation and
measurement requirements for each type of
disposal in HKFRS 5. The amendments do not
have any impact on the Group.

(ii) HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments”: provides
additional guidance in identifying the circumstances
under which a servicing contract is considered to
be “continuing involvement” for the purposes of
applying the disclosure requirements for transferred
assets. The amendments also clarifies that the
additional disclosure required by the amendments to
HKFRS 7 on offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities is not specifically required for all interim
periods, except where the disclosures provide a
significant update to the information reported in
the most recent annual report, in which case the
disclosures should be included. The amendments do
not have any impact on the Group.
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2016 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
(Continued)

(iii) HKAS 19 "Employee Benefits”: requires that the
currency and term of the corporate or government
bonds used to determine the discount rate for
post-employment benefit obligations must be
consistent with the currency and estimated term
of the obligations. The amendments clarify that
the assessment of the depth of the corporate
bond market shall be made at the currency-level
rather than the country-level. The amendments do
not have any impact on the Group.

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group's accounting policy for
the first period beginning after the effective date of the
pronouncement. The directors are currently assessing the
impact of these HKFRSs but are not yet in the position
to state whether they would have any material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR
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ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED 3.
HKFRSs (Continued)

New and amended HKFRSs that are effective
for annual periods beginning or after 1 January
2016 (Continued)

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued)

Information on these new pronouncements that
are expected to be relevant to the Group’'s financial
statements is provided below:

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

Amendments to HKAS 7

Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017
Amendments to HKAS 12

Recognition of Deferred

Tax Assets for Unrealised

Losses 1 January 2017
HKFRS 9 Financial

Instruments 1 January 2018
HKFRS 15 Revenue from

Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
Amendments to HKFRS 15

Clarifications to HKFRS 15

Revenue from Contracts

with Customers 1 January 2018
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the net book value
of a long lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired” and
an impairment loss may be recognised in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
The carrying amounts of long lived assets are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether
the recoverable amounts have declined below
the carrying amounts. These assets are tested
for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their recorded
carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
When such a decline has occurred, the carrying
amount is reduced to the recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
It is difficult to precisely estimate fair value less
cost of disposal because quoted market prices
for the Group's assets are not readily available.
In determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
estimation relating to the level of sales volume,
selling prices and the amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of sales volume,
selling prices and the amount of operating costs.
As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was HK$913,000
(2015: HK$6,562,000).
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)
Provision for impairment of receivables

The policy for the provision for impairment of
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of trade and
other receivables. A considerable amount of
estimation and judgement is required in assessing
the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including their current creditworthiness, past
collection history and financial condition. If the
financial conditions of these parties were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their
ability to make payments, additional allowance will
be required. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was HK$14,016,000
(2015: HK$23,686,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories of jewellery
products is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer taste and competitor actions
in response to severe industry cycle. Reversal of
provision for and write down of inventories, net
amounted to HK$805,000 (2015: Provision for
and write down of inventories, net amounted to
HK$647,000) was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2016. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting
period. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of inventories was HK$37,994,000 (2015:
HK$43,906,000).

—B-AEFH

4.1

HEBERZERARLDE 99

ertbat R E @)

gt REBR(E)

FEMR SRR E R

REE 2 BUSRFORERBRRE
RIB R 5 8RR e E b e W 50
Z R m e ) AR B AT MR ©
ERHE L FRUGRIR 2 REE R

B - BEHT J\1E§+%D¥U|%ﬁ B

ERRABREE - BEERGCE
PAR BAREARR, © ﬁ*ﬁfﬁ/\izﬁ?fﬁl
AR & Bz %iﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁuﬁﬂ

B BEAENEINEE - RN
~NE+=ZA=1+—H ﬁéﬂ&zféﬁ%,ﬂ%
2 BRTEEA14,016,0008T(=
T—FF : 23,686,000/ 7C) °

FE 2 A 25 F(E

KEEMJFECERFERB
BEBBERNHFEERMAET
ITHRARHEERST - ZFEET IR
BIRTMAARREREEER M
BEMZBELERMEL  TgA
EEE B RBEFEHFHEER
1T BHRBR 2 TE ML IRE
AEE) - HE_ZT—RF+_A=
+—BLFE BERIAGTEERE
KR 2 Bl % %8 & 805,000 7T
(ZE—1F : GTEBHERMBF
¥ /A647,000870) - EEENEZ
WEAREGHZEMFT - RZE—R
F+-A=+—0  FEZE@EE
#37,994,0008 T( Z T — R F -
43,906,000/ L) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

NETZA=+—HILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions (Continued)
Deferred. tax

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, no deferred
tax assets in relation to unused tax losses of
HK$88,447,000 (2015: HK$87,397,000) have been
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement
of financial position due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the
deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases
where the actual future profits generated are
less or more than expected, a material reversal
or further recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in the profit or
loss for the period in which such a reversal or
further recognition takes place.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. At 31 December 2016,
temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of a subsidiary amounted to HK$Nil (2015:
HK$1,899,000). Deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of this subsidiary and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the carrying
amount of deferred tax assets was HKS$Nil (see
note 30).

4.1

BE

eatbat R A E @)

EESATRERE)

%

N

B
RIB-—RER-ZE—RAF+-A
=+—H  AREEBRRR G
PR - WEBHEAKRBSATIES
688,447,000 T( Z T — A F -
87,397,000 L) 2 IEER B E B
ERAEE 2 GRE T BR R TP
RoBEFREEZJERENE
ZEUARBERRESE BM 2 KK
FISKERTE G ZT - WETESE
ZEBRI M DRK LN TEHE
o BIRREHBREERIEEEZE
RNEEI S — PR - WERETT
AR D — PR AAREER
RiE=mE °

I

HETEREZELMEBEREREZ
BLEAMSHEENEEEBRARK
JFEER T i 1) 0] FR VR4 8 B Ay = Rl ok
FRIEEER TURER - R-ZT—X
F+-HA=+—H  WEBRRXD
EFZ B EEATAL(ZZ—
A4 1,899,000 7T) - ANAA I
REEDIRZERE % F A 2 f
ERREEHREESE  DEAAR
THIZMB AR ZREBER - B
SRER A B AR RZEHEFIRATBETR
EEDK - N T RNEFR-_T—
AE+—A=+—H8  EEHEELE
EZEREAZHBIT(RMFE30) -
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4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES 4.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

4.2

Critical judgements in applying the
entity’s accounting policies
Development activities

Careful judgment by the Company’s management
is applied when deciding whether the recognition
requirements for development costs have been
met. This is necessary as the economic success
of any product development is uncertain and
may be subject to future technical problems at
the time of recognition. Judgments are based on
the best information available at the end of each
reporting period. In addition, all internal activities
related to the development of new software,
products or knowhow are continuously monitored
by the Company's management.

REVENUE AND TURNOVER

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to
these consolidated financial statements. Turnover of the
Group is the revenue from these activities.

Revenue from external customers from the Group's
principal activities recognised during the year is as
follows:

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

EESRT At RA M@

42 ERHERCEBERCEE
¥
F#% 8

ARREEBTERERBERAZE
A ERH R ER BAEHZERH
B RS ) A an B 3 AV S A L
TBRMZE  RERIZHRER
R EFTIR I o B TDIAE
ERBRAFREANZKEEHNSE
oo S ARAEEERBER
FAEERAERRMN EmREM
FHEVAEBEE

BMARERE

R Y £ BEBEL SRR R
B AEEZEEFARBREEH M
A o

FRACHBLREAEETZER 2R
FZWAT :

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET T

Sales of gold and jewellery products HEMHKBEEMEE 19,011 34,700
Franchise income Le S RPN 461 540
Enterprise software products ETGER 39,799 74,203
Systems integration REBEK 6,386 13,633
Professional services FER® 38,710 51,665
Total revenue “U A 104,367 174,741

HEERIZERERA R
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors, being the chief operating
decision maker, have identified the Group’s two products
and service lines as operating segments as further

described in note 2.24.

These operating segments are monitored and strategic
decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment

operating results.

NFF—_A=+—HIFFE

2 EHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W24 2 — Fimat - BITEE(H]
TRLERRE)CDH L AEEMRAER

KRB IR R 2

DHB o

ZER
AR BT R AF HSRBEORTE ©

ENBIRBERAERDF 2LER

2016
—E-RE
Jewellery IT Products
Products and Services Total
EARBER
KEER R “@sr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR
Revenue WA
- From external customers - REMIEP 19,472 84,895 104,367
Reportable segment revenue EES: Vi1 ON 19,472 84,895 104,367
Reportable segment loss before income tax HNBRFEHAT 2R DER (13,974) (31,891) (45,865)
Interest income 8 Mz 3 783 786
Depreciation nE (1,386) (926) (2,312)
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BFERFEFER
equipment - (4) (4)
Finance costs BB - (176) (176)
Provision for and write down of inventories to FERBERMRZNERFEE
net realisable value (1,312) - (1,312)
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment 9% « BERREZRESE (1,657) (1,234) (2,891)
Reversal of provision for and write down of FERE MR 2 B
inventories 2,117 - 2,117
Share of result of an associate ElE—HBE R EE - (1,651) (1,651)
Reportable segment assets 2RI BEE 279,086 62,631 341,717
Additions to non-current segment assets FERRENBZIERBEE
(other than financial instruments and (eI ARELEHEEERMN)
deferred tax assets) during the year 150 623 773
Reportable segment liabilities AEHEIBEE 22,415 246,477 268,892
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e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(E)
2015
—Z-1fF
Jewellery  IT Products
Products and Services Total
EARER
KEER R 4Bar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FAT
Revenue LN
- From external customers - REMNIEP 35,240 139,501 174,741
Reportable segment revenue A2HRIBKA 35,240 139,501 174,741
Reportable segment loss before income tax NBRFEHAT2RD HER (12,269) (20,722) (32,991)
Interest income Fl B s 21 1,163 1,184
Depreciation e (1,583) (2,092) (3,675)
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and HENE - BEREEFhE
equipment - 2 2
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value BARBEMABERZEREE
through profit or loss LA EEKE - 1,477 1,477
Finance costs HHER - (368) (368)
Provision for and write down of inventories to FEREREBERMAZTERFE
net realisable value (647) = (647)
Share of result of an associate Elh—HEEAREE - (1,490) (1,490)
Reportable segment assets 2RI BEE 292,045 128,932 420,977
Additions to non-current segment assets FRARBEDHIERBEE
(other than financial instruments and (SR TAREILERIBEERIN
deferred tax assets) during the year 77 812 889
Reportable segment liabilities EES:Vir:=te 18,267 278,653 296,920
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

The totals presented for the Group's operating segments
reconcile to the Group's key financial figures as
presented in the financial statements are as follows:

DEER (&)

AEBZEENH25 2 BEBREF B ]MEK
FRE5 2 AKEE B BEIRZ BRI T

2016 2015

—E-XRE —ET—HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Reportable segment assets AI2|MHPEE 341,717 420,977
Assets of a disposal company DEARBELE —BHE

classified as held for sale (note 26(a)) NAIEE(MFE26(a)) 33,027 -

Elimination of inter-segment receivables #1885 B0 E B UEIR (224,954) (224,954)

Group assets rEECEE 149,790 196,023

Reportable segment liabilities CIE s S = 268,892 296,920
Liabilities of a disposal company SERFEEEZ—HEE

classified as held for sale (note 26(b)) REIBE(MEE26(0)) 30,401 -

Elimination of inter-segment payables g BEERIE (224,954) (224,954)

Group liabilities AEEZEE 74,339 71,966

The Group's revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets) are divided into the following
geographical areas:

Place of domicile of customer/location of assets

AEBZREINBEFPWAREIFEREE
E(ERTAMELERBEERIN HRT
S EmE D

BEFXRFEL EEFREL

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
REMIEF 2 WA FREEE

2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XF —T—HF ZEBE-XRE —T—1F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHIT
Hong Kong B 6,517 56,347 17,507 40,075
PRC and Taiwan FER A& 88,520 108,211 876 6,523
South East Asia R 9,330 10,183 24 15
104,367 174,741 18,407 46,613
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. TEHERM®
Place of domicile of customer/location of assets EEXEREH EERTEH(E)
(Continued)
The geographical location of customers is based on the BEREME 2 »EERIBEREAEBERS
location at which the services were provided or the RESNIEEERZHEME - IEREE
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non- EZE N EBREZXEEE SR
current assets is based on the physical location of the 2EME °
asset.
During 2016, HK$29,063,000 or 28% of the Group's RIZZE—RF  REBEUAAF 229,063,000
revenues depended on a single customer belonging to IT BITE28% KEAPFE LK EENS Iz E—F
Products and Services segment and the PRC and Taiwan ARRERLERERE -
segment.
During 2015, none of the Group’s customers contributed RIE—R1F AEEMETP(EAEE
10% or more of the Group's total revenue. BUTEEEIT10% A £ o
OTHER INCOME 7. Hftlzs
2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET T
Other revenue Hibr A
Interest income F B Es 786 1,184
Dividend income from listed equity securities MR ARZE A 2 BB Uz - 507
Consultancy and management fee income BRI R EIE B ULES 843 1,968
Others HAh, 655 215
2,284 3,874
Other net (loss)/income Hib(F5E), W FE
Fair value gain on financial assets at BAREEFABRERZ
fair value through profit or loss SREEZ AR EBAERE - 1,477
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWME - BEREREZF
plant and equipment (B18), W= (4) 2
(4) 1,479
2,280 5,353
TE-RFFR HEERERERAE 105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

FINANCE COSTS 8. HMKER
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE—AhF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&TT
Interest charges on: MBI
Other borrowings, wholly BHEARAFAZEERZ
repayable within five years HAb g EUER 176 368
LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. HIBRFTEHATEIE
Loss before income tax is arrived at after (crediting)/ HBRFERATEIBE (GEA) /0
charging:
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZT—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiET FET
Cost of inventories sold FEIHERA 19,568 46,097
Cost of services rendered* IRMARF A A * 84,474 104,021
Depreciation e 2,312 3,675
Auditors’ remuneration ZHAE & 921 987
Provision for and write down of inventories 77 &5 RO
to net realisable value ZA R FE 1,312 647
Impairment loss on property, plant and Y - BEREE O RERE
equipment (note 14) (PfFzE14) 2,891 -
Net loss/(gain) on disposal/written off of HE WEWE  BERE
property, plant and equipment BB FEER (W) 4 (2)
Fair value gain on financial assets at BEAnBESABRRZ
fair value through profit or loss SRMEEZ AR EARKG - (1,477)
Reversal of provision for and write down of 77 & 8 & K iU 2 @ #
inventories (2,117) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRBARBE
(note 36) (F47136) - 258
Net exchange loss b H FEE 739 362
Operating lease charges on land and BRI EEF &S
buildings HEXH 5,916 7,786
o Cost of services rendered includes HK$66,750,000 (2015:  * RIS A B TE 8 TR ZA66,750,000%T( =

HK$84,783,000) relating to staff costs, which amount is
also included in the total amounts disclosed in note 12.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

10.

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided for the year
as the companies within the Group had no estimated
assessable profit in Hong Kong (2015: HK$Nil). Pursuant
to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC, the
companies comprising the Group in the PRC are liable to
PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25% during the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. Taxation on
overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profits for the year at the rates prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

FREHMAX

MRAEEBE T ARRETRL B ER
BUBEA - R BB AFREHREBFIEH
(Z2—0%F: &) REFEAZAEHR
AR fED) - ARBEETHEKEARNE
E_T-RER-_E-RAF+HA=1T—
BIFFERIEH R 25% Mt B hEME
B o BINEFROTLIR TR B F A 5T AR
BBEMRARBREXBMENERNE
TIMEEHE -

2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Current tax BIEARR I8
- Overseas —&5h
Current year KFEE 390 420
Deferred tax IR IE
Current year (note 30) REE (F5E30) - 1,146
Total income tax expense TREE At 390 1,566

“EAEFR PEERERERAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FRIE%iB%#)
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss RERAMEGSHIER Y Lot ERETY
at applicable tax rates: BE -
2016 2015
AL —ZT—hF
HK$000 HK$'000
F& T T
Loss before income tax MBRFTSHATER (45,865) (32,991)
Tax at the Hong Kong profits tax rate of REBNERINE16.5%
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) (ZZE—HF :16.5%)
SAEZRIE (7,568) (5,444)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARBRA Z HIEFE (726) (459)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AAHMRAS 2 BB E 4,228 2,663
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary RERGREE 2 HIEFE
differences 5 481
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses RERRIBBHBCRIEBFE 7,814 5,538
Derecognition of deferred tax assets RIEMIA A E R LR = 1,146
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax {5 AT R ERTHEE 1B
losses (217) (435)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMALEHERLE Y
operating in other jurisdictions WEB AR TRME
FEHM (3.146) (1,924)
Income tax expense FriSfim = 390 1,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11.

12.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —E— NF+-A=+—HIFFZ

LOSS PER SHARE 11. BREE
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share FREXREBEEEBNIRARNREA A
is based on the loss attributable to owners of the JEhE54842,763,0008 T( — 2 —RHF ¢
Company of HK$42,763,000 (2015: HK$28,467,000) 28,467,000/% 7t ) & #91,188,460,000 %
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of (ZZF—HAF :1,188,460,0000%) 2 FNE
approximately 1,188,460,000 (2015: 1,188,460,000) in BITEBARR D 2 NEFEHHBEETE -
issue during the year.
Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December HREE - ZE—REFLER-_ZE—AF+=A
2016 and 2015 equate the basic loss per share as there =t HIFERATEEEABEZ TR
is no potential dilutive ordinary share in existence during B W EREEEBRASENERERNE
the years. B
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 12. EEEFBEXX(EBIEEEEHMH)
(including directors’ emoluments)
2016 2015
—E—XF —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Wages, salaries and other benefits TE  HFekHEMER 75,486 99,995
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIKE kA — FEEH T2 10,034 11,461
85,520 111,456
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

13. E%  TEZETHAERERE

BAEEHM

EMOLUMENTS

13.1 Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments

Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments,
disclosed pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules,
section 383 (1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure
of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation, is as follows:

13.1

EERFETRASHM

EENTETRABHMIORIEE

R EMBRA - BERBES

|55

3BMER AN BEEEENEE

FORBIFE2RBWBENT

Contributions
to defined
Directors’ Salaries and contribution
Fees allowances plan Total
EBHT
ESHe HFEREN HE [ ok
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
33 TiEx TiEn TiEx TiEx
2016 “E-5E
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Chong Yu Ping SRTEL (al - 450 18 468
Ms. Li Xia Bt (b) - 855 87 942
Mr. Chen Yin BELA - 530 18 548
Independent non-executive directors: BUFHTES :
Mr. Lam Tin Faat MERELE 180 - - 180
Ms. Lu Haina 3t p o 120 = = 120
Ms. Na Xin Mozt 120 - - 120
420 1,835 123 2,378
2015 %1%
Executive directors: HTEE:
Ms. Li Xia FENT (b) - 600 18 618
Mr. Lin Di mEEE (c) - 400 15 415
Mr. Chen Yin BRELAE - 456 18 474
Independent non-executive directors: BYFHTEE
Mr. Lam Tin Faat WREEE - 180 = 180
Ms. Lu Haina Bt = 120 = 120
Ms. Na Xin il e = 120 = 120
- 1,876 51 1,927
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e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
AND SENIOR MIANAGEMENT’'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

13.1 Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Mr. Chong Yu Ping was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 17
February 2016.

Ms. Li Xia is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company since 30 March 2015 and her
emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by her as the Chief Executive
Officer.

Mr. Lin Di was also the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company from 1 January 2014 to 30
March 2015 and his emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by him as
the Chief Executive Officer. He resigned as the
Chief Executive Officer on 30 March 2015 and
resigned as an executive director on 30 October
2015.

No emoluments were paid by the Group to any
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and

2015.

There were no arrangements under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

i

13.

HEERIZERERA R

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

BEE  FETHAERSRE
BAEHM =)

13.1 EERFETBRAEFHFME)

PR -

(a) HEFEER - ZT-—R"EF_A+LBEHE
RERKRBRTES -

(b) FERTE_T-AF=-A=1tHER
RRBITHRAEE - B EXWEE 2 HMaT
REANEBTBIRH R RS 2 5

(c) MEEER-_T—NF—A—HE=_F
—AFEZAZ+HHMNARRR 21T
B - M EXHBZEHH REER
TTHRBHIEHRE 2 HM - AR =T —
AEZA=Z+THBTTRAH TR =
T-RAF+A=THEAWNTES -

BE_Z—RER-ZE—HE+-_A=+
—BIEFE  AEBWERERES S
HFMEAMAREB K IMARNEE %R 2 18
B E AR A -

BE_ZT—XRFh-_ZT—ARF+-A=+
—BIFE  YTEESERESRENET
E Mz 28 -
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —E— NF+-_A=+—HIFFZF

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

13. E%  TEZETHAERERE

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S BAEHM =)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
13.2 Five highest paid individuals 13.2 AEREHMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included three
(2015: two) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2015: three)
individuals during the year are as follows:

FR - AEERESESHFMALE
B=2(ZZF—h%F mMB)EF "
HFME A LD RBR - £/
NGB TME(ZT—HF: =4)
BoFHMA L ZFHBMET

2016 2015
—E-XRE —E—RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
Salaries and allowances and e  EMEREDA S
benefit-in-kind 1,015 1,915
Contributions to defined TE R AT IR
contribution plan 36 23
1,051 1,938
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HNRATEE :

Number of individuals

ETAH
2016 2015
—E—XF e e
Emolument band FENEE
HK$Nil to HK$500,000 T 7L E 500,000 7T 1 1
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 TE
1,000,000/ 7T 1 2
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. Y% - BMERRKRE
EQUIPMENT
Computer
Leasehold and office Furniture and Motor
improvements  equipment fixtures vehicles Total
ERRMAE
HENEEE #E BRREE RE 3

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhT FhT ThT ThT Thx

At 1 January 2015 R=E-n&-5-A
Cost A 4,405 32,390 7,589 1,344 45,728
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERAERE

impairment losses (4,283) (26,788) (2,928) (934) (34,933)
Net book amount REFE 122 5,602 4,661 410 10,795
Year ended 31 December 2015 B2-Z2-1%+-A=1-H

LEE

Opening net hook amount FREFE 122 5,602 4,661 410 10,795
Exchange differences ERES (7) (189) (215) (15) (426)
Additions ARE - 359 75 455 889
Disposalsfwritten off E/ M - 2) 3) - (5)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) HE—ERBAR(HE36) - (606) (1) (409) (1,016)
Depreciation e (88) (2,209) (1,167) (211) (3,675)
Closing net book amount EXREZE 27 2,955 3,350 230 6,562
At 31 December 2015 and R=B-RE+-A=1-AK

1 January 2016 “E-RE-A-H
Cost KR 2,846 21,238 6,465 766 37,315
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERRERE

impairment losses (2,819) (24,283) (3,115) (536) (30,753)
Net book amount REFE 21 2,955 3,350 230 6,562
Year ended 31 December 2016 B2-8-"Et=A=1-H

LEE

Opening net book amount ENREFE 2 2,955 3,350 230 6,562
Exchange differences ERZES - (83) (83) 4 (162)
Additions AE - 423 123 221 m
Disposals/written off HE /i - (1) - (18) (19)
Depreciation e (27) (998) (1,115) (172) (2,312)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss ~ IMERREZFERBE - (1,007) (1,680) (204) (2,891)
Reclassify to assets of a disposal company ~ EH P BE-BHEAHELEN

classified as held for sale [note 26a)) MEANEE(FFE26() - (1,036) (2) - (1,038)
Closing net book amount EXRETE - 253 503 67 913
At 31 December 2016 R=E-AE+=A=1-H
Cost KR 1,785 13,066 6,176 769 21,796
Accumulated depreciation and SHTERRERE

impairment losses (1,785) (12,813) (5,583) (702) (20,883)
Net book amount REFE - 253 503 67 913

“TAEFE HEEBERERAT 113



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F—

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group carried out impairment reviews of its property,
plant and equipment in 2016, having regarding to the
market conditions of the Group’s business.

Under Jewellery Products segment, the management
regards its individual retail stores as separately
identifiable cash-generating units (“CGU 1”). Under
IT Products and Services segment, as a result of the
unfavourable performance of FEEA(FCORYI) AR A A
and FESNERE () AR AT, indirect wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, of which the management
regards these two subsidiaries as CGU 2 and CGU 3
individually. Property, plant and equipment is allocated to
the Group’s CGUs identified.

For the purpose of impairment test, the recoverable
amounts of the CGUs have been determined on the
basis of value-in-use calculations, which use cash flow
forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets
approved by management for the remaining non-
cancellable lease term of the respective retails stores of
CGU 1 and the next five years of CGU 2 and CGU 3 with
the residual period using the zero growth rate. At 31
December 2016, the pre-tax rates used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group’s CGU 1, CGU 2 and
CGU 3 were 16.7%, 17.9% and 17.9%.

Based on the assessment, an impairment loss of
HK$2,891,000 was recognised in the profit or loss
of which HK$1,007,000 was allocated to computer
and office equipment, HK$1,680,000 was allocated to
furniture and fixtures and HK$204,000 was allocated to
motor vehicles for the year ended 31 December 2016
and respective recoverable amount of aforesaid CGUs to
which the impaired property, plant and equipment belong
was zero.
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NFF—_A=+—HIFFE

M - MERRE®)

WE - BB R RN E T
AEER-T-AFHAWE - BERR
BRITAERT B ERIAEELR
BATS R ATRR, o
AHEERHBT  ERFARMENT
SR AT T R D S B R
(TR&SELER]) - EARBESRRR

BoRT - AREBRHCRIDBR A
R EBNERE (M) BR A B (KA FH
ME2EREHNEBAR) R RMER
BEEEMNOEEMEXMBATDRRESE
EEMA2RBRETELEMUI - WE - BER
REDDEEARECHAINATELE

fi7 o

RREANRMES  REELEELAATKE
SHRDERNEREETEEE  AERE
EEERRCEEEMIANSTERHL
TAAEEHEOFAARSRB S ELEN
2FR S E A BMUIEARRAFHFH(#R
TEBERTIERE) TR SIT AR
FEERERMNRSRBAET -R_T—
NE+ZA=+—H AUIBEAEER
SEASMN  ReELEBE(2RREESE
BAINBAREMENRATIRESRIR
16.7% ~ 17.9% K17.9% -

BEZTE  #2_2—XRF+-A=+
—BULFE BEBEmPHERRESBE
2,891,000/ 7T + £ 1,007,000 L2 5
@EEE@H‘“&#J#@;?&% +1,680,000/8 T2
PERERLKLREE - %204,0008TE

FERE - MEREYE - BEMRER
%E’]J: LR eEAEURANA KBS
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15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2016 are as follows:

15. RINB AR 2=

RZEB-—RE+A=+—H T ENBE
RAZFHBWAT :

Percentage of issued

Place of Particulars of issued  and paid up capital/
incorporation/ Place of and paid up capital/ registered capital held
Name of company registration operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
FARBEERST
BRIRHRRE/ RBRRE/
WEARZRE RaLVA e ] BB EfEAFE ZMERZEAL  TEER
Excel (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands* Hong Kong 5,000 shares of US$1 100%*  Investment holding
gach (2015: 100%*)
AERAEE* X 5,000 R EE 100%*  RERR
1ETZRG (ZE-RF 0 100%)
Excel China Investment (BVI) British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 5,000 shares of US$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited each (2015: 100%)
TRTEREARAA AERAEE* B 5,000 R EE 100% RERR
1EnZBG (ZT-RF:100%)
Excel Consulting and Malaysia* Malaysia 100,000 shares of 100%  Development of
Solutions Sdn. Bhd. Malaysian Ringgit (2015: 100%) computer software
("MYR") 1 each and provision of
sale and marketing
services
SREE SREE 100,000R B E A& 100% FEIHEHRRMAEE
SRETK(SE) (CB-RF:100%)  RIHEERE
[brd i
Excel Global IT Services British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 500,000 shares 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited of US$1 each (2015: 100%)
AERAES* ElE 500,000 SR EE 100% RERR
1ETZBG (ZT-RF:100%)
Excel Global IT Services (HK) Hong Kong* Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100%  Provision of professional
Limited (2015: 100%) services
TEAENR(RE)ERAH A Bk 10,0008% A1 100% REZRRS
(ZZ—8%:100%)
Excel Investment China Limited ~ Hong Kong* Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100%  Investment holding
(2015: 100%)
TERETEARAT N R 1,000/ B 100% REER
(ZZ—32% :100%)
Excel International Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 10,000 shares 100%  Inactive
(2015: 100%)
oM &E 10,0008% A1 100% EEgg
(ZZ—R%:100%)
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e MR MR

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. RIB AT 2= (&)

Percentage of issued

Place of Particulars of issued  and paid up capital/
incorporation/ Place of and paid up capital/ registered capital held
Name of company registration operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
FARBRERT
BRIRBRRE/ RARRA/
WEARER /Rt EXHE AMERFE dMERZAS L TEXH
Excel SSL Investment Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100%  Investment holding
(2015: 100%)
SRR ERRAR N &R 1,000 K17 100% HERR
(ZZ—5%:100%)
Excel System Limited (note (b)) British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 100 shares of US$1 Nil  Deregistered
each (2015: 65%)
Excel System Limited(fifiEh)  EBELEE* BE 10085 HREE £ aH
1Znekh (ZF-EF:65%)
Excel Technology International ~ British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100%  Investment holding
(BVI) Limited (2015: 100%)
AERLES" i 1REME 100% RERR
1Enkn (Z2-0F :100%)
Excelink Development British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 10,000 shares of US$1 100%  Investment holding
Corporation each (2015: 100%)
SRERARAT RERNME* &k 10,000 BREE 100% REER
1ETZBG (ZE-RF100%)
Excelink Technology Pte Ltd. Singapore* Singapore Singapore Dollar (“S$") 100%  Development of
893,022 (2015: 100%) computer software
and provision of
sale and marketing
services
s G s (3 g ) 100% FESKEHERER
893022 (ZE-RF:100%)  BHERTEEERS
Hong Kong Jewellery Co., Hong Kong* Hong Kong 1 share 100%  Investment holding
Limited (2015: 100%)
EBRERRAT B 6 1R 100% HELER
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e MR MR

15.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

15. RIfB AR Z2ER=#)

Percentage of issued

Place of Particulars of issued  and paid up capital/
incorporation/ Place of and paid up capital/ registered capital held
Name of company registration operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
RARABRCET
BRORBERE/ RERRAE/
WEARERE AL pA R e dfEARE ZMEAZEAL  TEER
HR21 Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands* Hong Kong 50,000 shares of US$1 93%  Investment holding
each (2015: 93%)
RERAES* &k 50,0008 B R EE B% REER
1EnkB (ZF-0%F:93%)
HR21 Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 2 shares 93%  Development of
(2015: 93%) computer software
and provision of
maintenance services
A B 2Rt 93% FEREREHRRELRS
(Z2-2%:9%3%) RE
i21 Limited Hong Kong* Hong Kong 14,000 shares 80.1% Inactive
(2015: 80.1%)
N &R 14,000 K17 80.1% Em&%
(Z2—1F:80.1%)
Infostar Ltd. British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100%  Investment holding
(2015: 100%)
EERLES" &k 1R EE 100% ®ERR
1ETZBRGB  (ZT-RF:100%)
World Sky International Limited  British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100%*  Investment holding
(2015: 100%7)
tRERARRT EERLES" B 1REE 100% &ERR
1ETZBRA  (ZE-RF :100%)
Wise Success Ltd. British Virgin Islands*  Hong Kong 5,000 shares of US$1 100%  Investment holding
each (2015: 100%)
EERNHE* & 5,000k EREE 100% RERR
1EZnkfn (Z2-0F :100%)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

15.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —=F

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

—NFEFZA=+—HILFE

15. RIB AT 2= (&)

Percentage of issued

Place of Particulars of issued  and paid up capital/
incorporation/ Place of and paid up capital/ registered capital held
Name of company registration operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
RARBEERT
BEARMRRE/ RBRRE/
HWEARER i/ Rt EEWE EMEAHE ZMEAZEAL  TEEK
FREBRERRERAR PRC*** PRC US$2,200,000 65%  Systems integration,
(note 26) (2015: 65%) development of
computer software
and provision of
maintenance services
FREBRENRBRAA ] FE 2,200,000% 7 65% ZOEMN - AEEM
(M7E26) (ZB-hF:65%)  BHRBERERS
SEAGE(M)BRAR PRC** PRC HK$87,000,000 100%  Design and sales of
(2015: 100%) gold and jewellery
products
i HE 87,000,000/ 100% REREEELRAEE
(ZZ2—H%F:100%) m
RMEBHESERZRARAT  PRCH PRC Renminbi (*RMB") 100%  Development of
(note (a)) 6,000,000 (2015: 66%) computer software
and provision of
maintenance services
MIERRETERZRER AR HE HE ARE(ARE]) 100% FEERTHRELRE
(PizE(a) 6,000,000t (ZZ—1F :66%) %
FREMH(RINBRAD PRC** PRC HK$3,000,000 100%  Development of
(2015: 100%) computer software
and provision of
maintenance services
g e 3,000,000 7T 100% REEREGRELRE
(ZZ—HF:100%) %
FENETHRE(EE)ERDR PRCH PRC US$1,700,000 100%  Provision of professional
(2015: 100%) services and systems
integration
i+ B 1,700,000% T 100% RESERERZGER
(ZZ—R%:100%)
FEAERE MM ARA PRC** PRC US$70,000 100%  Provision of professional
(2015: 100%) services
hE ] 70,0005 100% REZERHE
(ZZ—R% :100%)
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e MR MR

15.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

15. RIfB AR Z2ER=#)

Percentage of issued

Place of Particulars of issued  and paid up capital/
incorporation/ Place of and paid up capital/ registered capital held
Name of company registration operations registered capital by the Company  Principal activities
RARBEERT
BEARMERE/ RBRRE/
WEARERE AL pA R e AMERFE ZMEAZEAL  TEER
HIEARERAERAR Taiwan* Taiwan New Taiwan Dollar 100%  Provision of professional
("NT$") (2015: 100%) services
11,913,620
BB fig ek 100% REZERE
(IFe%])  (ZZ—0%F :100%)
11,913,620
RETRERSBRER AL PRCH PRC RMB10,000,000 100%  Development of
BRAT] (2015: 100%) computer software
and provision of
maintenance services
M i ARHE 100% FEIHAMRRMERE
10,000,000  (ZE—HF:100%) K
# Issued capital held directly by the Company # ARREEFBAEEEITRA
* Limited liability company * BRAR]
i) Wholly-owned foreign enterprise e INEBEE
***  Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise **xx NS BRD D

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in a list of excessive length.

—B-AEFH

HEBERZERARLDE 11

S

ERINRZARRMBAR » DEERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

NETZA=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RHFB AR 2= (&)
(Continued)
The following table lists out the information relating to TR AEEHE A FI21 Limited
i21 Limited, HR21 Limited and 1t RABHERHARA HR21 Limited RIEREBREFRBRA
Al,the subsidiaries of the Group, which have material ALZAABER - RERFHEABRIFZR
non-controlling interests (“NCI"”). The summarised e ([FFEARAEaS ) - TRATHESIZAT
financial information presented below represents the BMBE Y ARETARIMEEE 28 -
amounts before any inter-company elimination.
2016
ZE-RF
i21 HR21 L REREE
Limited Limited RNEERAF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT TET FET
NCI percentage IERERB DL 19.9% 7% 35%
Current assets MENVEE 817 14,983 32,994
Non-current assets FnBEE = 14 1,038
Current liabilities mEaE (42,996) (15,591) (42,333)
Net liabilities BEFE (42,179) (594) (8,301)
Carrying amount of NC izt s < BRE(E (2,150) 413 (2,905)
Revenue WA - 6,399 (18,748)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(ER),/ 5T (13) 54 (12,272)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income 2 (Fx), WA %48 (13) 54 (12,272)
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI DiLEFERERZ
(B#),/ a7 (3) 4 (4,296)
Dividend paid to NCI B IEERERRE - = =
Cash flows (used in)/from mEEEE(EA)
operating activities EECHERE (2) 1,967 214
Cash flows used in investing activites ~HEZBBAZRERE - - (26)
Cash flows used in financing activities ~BEEZSMBAZRERE - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

NFF—A=+—HIFFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15. RIB AR 2= (&)
(Continued)
2015
“T-REF
21 HR21 JtREBEE
Limited Limited BHEBRAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
NCI percentage FEERERE DL 19.9% 7% 35%
Current assets MEVEE 819 15,925 35,646
Non-current assets FRBEE = 44 1,641
Current liabilities ;‘Jﬁ@JE% (42,985) (16,617) (33,316)
Net (liabilities)/assets Bff)  BEFE (42,166) (648) 3,971
Carrying amount of NCI 3HIHX$E 52 BREE (2,147) 409 1,391
Revenue WA - 6,898 25,208
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE),/HmF (10) 588 (18,046)
Total comprehensive (expense)/income %E X)),/ WAL (10) 588 (18,046)
(Loss)/Profit allocated to NCI DEEEFERER 2
(&518),/ &% (2) 4 (6,316)
Dividend paid to NCI B IR E - - -
Cash flows from/(used in) mEEESMES,/ (BR)
operating activities ZHEERE 2 211 2,202
Cash flows used in investing activites ~HEEZHFABAZIRERE - (9) -
Cash flows used in financing activities ~BEEEFBHREHE - - -
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e MR MR

15.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
Notes: Pt
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group (a) BE_T-A"F+-A=+—HILF
acquired additional 34% equity interests in SR EHE B AREB AR ERBIE TR
[EtEH EZZARAT at a consideration of HK$4. As a BMARAAIMEINA%BE - KER4
result of the acquisitions, the difference between the BT ARETHIAKE - EFRE4
consideration paid of HK$4 and the amount of non- %Egﬂaﬁﬁgﬁ’fﬁ%&ﬁ@@gﬁZﬁE"‘J
controlling interests adjusted of HK$276,000 was directly £#276,0008T - EEBEARRETFE
recognised in the capital reserve. BEHERR o
(b) During the year ended 31 December 2016, a subsidiary (b) BE_T-A"F+-A=+—HILF
of the Company, Excel System Limited was voluntarily & - AR7 KB AT Excel System
deregistered. The net liabilities of Excel System Limited Limited 5 FE=L$H © Excel System Limited
on the date of deregistration was as follows: REEsHZ BRFRMEMT
2016
—E-XxF
HK$’000
FET
Net liabilities deregistered of: I EasE .
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary fEW—RERZMB R RFIE 2,295
Amount due to an immediate holding company R —REEZEERAFNFIE (4,911)
(2,616)
Add: Waiver of amount due to an immediate o e EM —EEEERA R RIE
holding company 4,911
Add: Waiver of amount due from a hn o Efe FEUR — R R B A R R RIE
fellow subsidiary (2,295)
Less: Non-controlling interests R IR R -
Gain/Loss on deregistration R EHmEE 2 WS B8 -

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

15. RIB AT 2= (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

16.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

16. R—EBE QR zERE

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E-HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T F&TT
Deemed cost (note 36) RAERA (K17E36) 5,131 5,131
Share of post-acquisition losses and other  JE(RIEER 2 BB R E 2|
comprehensive expense X (3,141) (1,490)
Share of net assets JEhEEFE 1,990 3,641
Amount due from Excel HK W EIR BB KIE 15,504 36,410
17,494 40,051
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, R &R R IEAEIIR C RETE B
interest-free and is not repayable within one year. BEAR—FAERE
Particulars of the Group’'s unlisted associate at 31 REBRZZE—R"E+ZA=1T—HZ#
December 2016 are as follows: LI E AR ZFBOT

Country/place of
incorporation and

Percentage of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital held
indirectly by the

Name of associate operations Company Principal activities
HEMRIRKEER AORMBESEERT
NG ey b Bh EBERAHEZBEIL TEXK
Excel Technology International Hong Kong 50% Development of computer
(Hong Kong) Limited (2015: 50%) software, systems

integration and the
provision of maintenance
services

EREEREER(BE)ERAR BE 50% 7 B A B R R AR ER B A

—E-0F 50%) RE‘RERERS
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16.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited
("Excel HK") is a strategic partner for the Group's growth
in the development of computer software and the
provision of systems integration, professional services
and maintenance services through its expertise. Excel
HK was a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company’s
subsidiary prior to completion of the subscription on 27
May 2015, which resulted in the Group’s shareholding in
Excel HK being reduced to 50% and the Group ceased
its control over Excel HK. As such, Excel HK became an
associate of the Group and is accounted for using the
equity method in these consolidated financial statements
with effect from 27 May 2015. Details of the deemed
disposal of the Group’s interest in Excel HK are set out
in Note 36.

Summarised financial information of the Group's
associate, Excel HK, adjusted for any differences in
accounting policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements, are
disclosed below:

16.

NFF—_A=+—HIFFE

R—BEBE QR 2 Eme)

SHRMRBER(FEE)ARARATE
B AAREE 2 B ﬁ%ﬁ’f%ﬁi
ENE - ERBREMTTARRHRESSE
B BERBELRERE T EAANEET
XWE TEBEEBER-_T—RAFRA=T

w%$ﬁ AW RNl ) --PNGIES
Iéﬂ;ﬁ% wu\a§$lg ﬁz$glﬁ/\/u
%%%Zﬁ%ﬁ“iW% BARERE
HEBFBZIZHIRE - Bt - EBEFER
“E-AFRA-tEREXRAREEZ
BEQT  WERAEDARZSREME
BERAR - FERELERAEERERE
et 2 FIBENHIFES6 ©

AEEBERFREREEZHBENBE
(UM EF BB EAZRIERFE) L E
RAMBHRRAEERMECHEREENT:

2016 2015

—nE —E—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHETT

Non-current assets IERBEE 899 1,254
Current assets MEEE 45,856 74,272
Current liabilities mEaE (42,775) (68,244)
Net assets BEFE 3,980 7,282
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e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

16. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continved) 16. R—EHEE AR 2= (&)

Period from 27
May 2015 (date
of reclassification
as an associate)
to 31 December

2016 2015
—E—RF
FA-++tH
(B¥HEEA
YN A=)
EZT—HF
+-—A=+—8
—E-RE 1EHAR
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Revenue W& 110,596 71,413
Loss and total comprehensive BEAkEER AR
expense (3,301) (2,980)
Group's share of result of an FRN AR EE RGBT
associate for the year/period NGIEOES (1,651) (1,490)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial Lt ZM AR ER RS B RERER
information to the carrying amount of the interests ZRERBBEREEE CHR
in Excel HK recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT T
Net assets of Excel HK EBERBEEFE 3,980 7,282
Proportion of the Group’s ownership REEREREBAE EEDR
interest in Excel HK ZBE5k 50% 50%
The Group's ownership interest REEREBREEZ
in Excel HK FrB et m 1,990 3,641
Amount due from Excel HK FEW BB A RIE 15,504 36,410
Carrying amount of the Group's AEBREBEBER
interest in Excel HK ZERHEE 17,494 40,051
The details of the financial guarantee given by the Group REEREBEBRENTFERFBR
to Excel HK are disclosed in note 37. MIEE37# 55 ©

ZEAFFR HEERERERAR 125



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17.

18.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —E— NF+-_A=+—HIFFZF

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 17. AItHESTRERE
ASSETS

2016 2015
=BT —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Unlisted private equity fund FETRABRZEES
Fair value NREE 2,543 2,543
Less: provision for impairment o ORERE (2,543) (2,543)
Unlisted equity investments LM ARE
Cost B AR 3,900 3,900
Less: provision for impairment W BB (3,900) (3,900)
Total available-for-sale financial assets A ESREERE - -
GOODWILL 18. B&
The net carrying amount of goodwill can be analysed as BEEMEEZOFOT :
follows:
2016 2015
=BT —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
At the beginning and the end of year REIRFR
Gross carrying amount BERTEE 15,853 15,853
Accumulated impairment RFHRE (15,853) (15,853)
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

19. DEVELOPMENT COSTS 19. B
2016 2015
—E—RF —ZE—AhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January R—A—H
Cost B A 7,052 37,376
Accumulated amortisation RETHEEE (7,052) (37,376)
Net book amount REFE = =
Year ended 31 December BE+-BA=1+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount RE 2 REFE = -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) HE—RK B AR (Mi7E36) - -
Amortisation charge BEEA = =
Written off i 38 - _
Closing net book amount RERZREFAE - -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Cost DN 7,052 7,052
Accumulated amortisation REHEH (7,052) (7,052)
Net book amount REFE - -
During the year ended 31 December 2015, cost of HE-_ZT—RAF+-_A=1+—RHILFE -
development costs amounting to HK$30,324,000 was £A%030,324,0008 L2 AR AR EE —
fully offset by the related accumulated amortisation upon XM B A RBEHEWARE 2 R #HK
disposal of a subsidiary. i o
The development costs represented all direct costs RBERNARECETHERREEZM
incurred in the development of enterprise software BEZER  WERNEEE2E#EH -

products and were fully amortised in prior years.
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20.

21.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

INVENTORIES 20. 78
2016 2015
—B-RF —_ZT—-h%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA&TT

Jewellery Products HKEER

Raw materials R 2,488 999
Work in progress E8 2,698 35
Finished goods IPK Th 32,808 42,872
Total st 37,994 43,906

Reversal of provision for and write down of inventories,
net amounted to HK$805,000 (2015: Provision for and
write down of inventories, net amounted to HK$647,000)
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2016.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT
WORK

Amounts due from customers for contract work
represent the excess of the value of work performed
over the amount of billing issued to customers.

Amounts due to customers for contract work represents
the excess of billing over the value of work performed
and the amounts received from customers before the
related services have been rendered.

21.

BE-_Z—RNE+-A=+—HILFE -
EERTERBRMACARRIBFEL
805,000/ (=B — R4 : FEBE &Ml
Bl FEE A647,000/8 7T ) °

Y (BEFEHNIER
5

EREFAEOTIREAAECETIIEERE
SREMNZFELZRECHEIZR

BNEFPENIRFEERESESNE
EITTIREE - REHABRBAIEKE
FREBZER °
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21.

22.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 21. B (B EFENIEN
CUSTOMERS FOR CONTRACT H(E)
WORK (continued)
2016 2015
—E-AF —F—h%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT T
Contracts in progress at the end of the REHRPRZEITHEYN :
reporting period:
Estimated contract costs plus recognised  ff&t& KIBA NN 2 FE R4 A
profits less recognised losses BEEREE 39,726 79,099
Less: progress billings B EERESE (37,974) (56,534)
1,752 22,565
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B -
Amounts due from customers for contract JEWEF & ¥ TI2Z0E
work 4,767 25,842
Amounts due to customers for contract EREFPANIRHIE
work (3,015) (3,277)
1,752 22,565
All the amounts included in amounts due from/(to) are SFARY (B ZEESE - BHER
expected to be billed and recovered/(credited) to the —FRBELREERKE(GTA)BER -
profit or loss within one year.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 22. EWEZERX
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R
From third parties F=5 14,115 23,441
From a related party — 2@ H - 425
14,115 23,866
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : FEUWKIE R E RS (99) (180)
14,016 23,686
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22.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —F—

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables from third parties for IT products and
services are due within 0 — 90 days (2015: 14 — 60 days)
from the date of billing. Trade receivable from a related
party is non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable
on demand. Debtors with balances that are more than
90 days overdue are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.

The Group's sales of gold and jewellery products
comprised mainly cash sales and credit card sales to
retail customers and credit sales to franchisees are due
within 0 — 60 days from the date of billing. The directors
of the Group considered that the fair values of trade
receivables are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods at their inception. All trade receivables are
expected to be recovered within one year.

Based on the invoice dates (or date of revenue
recognition if earlier), the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables, net of provision for impairment, was as
follows:

22.

NETZA=+—HILFE

FWE SRR &)

BB ER KRB BEFE=T285
RRANBEAEATENATR(ZE -1
F:TOBEEATH)REE - BKR—HEE
BMOTZEZRIREE  BEMRARS
KEE - BMBENTRZEKE SRR
RBREEEERTREEERRTIBER
HE—HEE -

AEBEZHES RREERHEETZERERA
ZEREPZASHERGERRHEE - UK
ARFFINERZEEHE  FEHE%HE
HRETEXRTHRIE  -AKEEERS
Rt FHRIAREIRR - WEWE B RR
ZAnBEREFNEYESAZR -
BRNME ZEFRBERHR —FARE -

BREZFZAHRKARR A B(HER
8)) - BRESERF(EHRRERE)
BRI

2016 2015

—E—XRE —E—hEF

HK$°000 HK$'000

T FHET

0 - 30 days 0- 30H 8,614 16,570
31 - 60 days 31- 60H 349 3,860
61 — 90 days 61- 90H 409 1,910
Over 90 days HiE90H 4,644 1,346
14,016 23,686

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
receivables for evidence of impairment on both an
individual and collective basis. The amount of impairment
loss of impaired receivables, if any, is recognised based
on the credit history of the customer, whether the
customer is experiencing financial difficulties and was in
default or delinquency of payments, and current market
conditions.

REBPR - NEE S Y REGIAERER
RERRE - AEERTHERERE < B
B2 REFAE(INE) 2 BEBRSHE @ ]
BEEPZERCH(MEFPEE EHAMIK
REEN B AR SREMIN ) R Hi5HR
SUHERR.
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22.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

22.

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

W E SRR &)
FEI R B BR SORE RS~ BT -

2016 2015

—E—XF —E—HF

HK$000 HK$'000

FExT FAT

Balance at the beginning of the year REV 84858 180 187
Bad debt written off i 88 R 2 AR (75) -
Exchange differences PEH =% (6) (7)
Balance at the end of the year RERZ BT 99 180

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade receivables
based on due date is as follows:

RE B AEBERESEREIZERD
R

2016 2015

AL —ZT-hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T T

Neither past due nor impaired R EATNE R E 5,270 16,683
1 — 90 days past due #HI1- 90H 4,102 6,285
Over 90 days past due B HAEE 890 H 4,644 718
14,016 23,686

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, trade receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired related to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a large number of diversified customers that
had a good track record of credit with the Group. Based
on past credit history, management believe that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered to be
fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral in
respect of trade receivables past due but not impaired.

—B-AEFH

HEERIZERERA R

R-E—RER_E—RFE+-_A=1+—
B RAOSMEREZERESER
BRZZEPERFEHEZIAEAZR
}5 o

EBHEERECREESER  FRZ
ARAEEBRFEEREZARERZ
BF - REBBEZEECE  EEERE
BELEFUFERIRRERE - RAR
EEERTESAE L - BAKRDIER
AR EUE o AN B L B A A R
Bz RBKESERFHETAERA -
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23.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

e MR MR

23. HMBWHE - RERAMNR

AND PREPAYMENTS g
2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Other receivables H fth EURFRIB 6,113 5,969
Deposits - 517 722
Amount due from an investee company JE I & A BIFIE 4,480 10,073
Prepayments NG 5,962 5,649
17,072 22,413

The amount due from an investee company of
HK$4,480,000 (2015: HK$7,705,000), which is unsecured,
interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable within
1 year from the end of the reporting period. At year
ended 31 December 2016, interest income accrual of
HKS$Nil (2015: HK$2,368,000) was derived from the
amount due from an investee company.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair values
of other receivables, deposits and amount due from an
investee company are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because these balances have short
maturity periods on their inception.

At 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group has not
determined any other receivables as individually impaired
and no provision for impairment of other receivables was
recognised.

JEUIR B A A3 IE4,480,0008 L ( — & —
A 7,705,000/ 70) BEIEE - ZFF
K12%EME - BARBAERBRE—FA
g -R-_E—XF+-_A=+—8 1
RAMBZEBT(ZE—AF : 2,368,000/8
T TR EFEWIEE AR 2 FE -

AEBEEERLRA/ULEFALEHK
R BMEMEEFIR - B RERKER
ARAZ AR BEAEREELBENE
H o

RIBE—ARFR_E—RF+-_A=1+—
A AEETREETANAEREIREZ
Hip g ziiE - B8 5 E 0 EURIE R
ETEREE -
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24.

25.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group’s investments in listed equity securities as
at 31 December 2015 had been disposed of through
deemed disposal of the Group's interest in Excel HK
as detailed in note 36. The fair value of the Group's
investments in listed equity securities as at 31 December
2015 has been determined by reference to their quoted
bid prices (Level 1) as at 31 December 2015.

24.

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

BRARBETFAEZRZER
BE
AEBR-_ZT—RAF+_A=T—HFEB
BRIELEBAERREEEE 2R D
€ FHEFL2HME36 AEBR T —
AF+_A=+—HRETREAEFELSZK
BZARBEELEER_ZE—RHF+=
A=+—RHzZ#%E(E—BRET -

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. BERREEEY
2016 2015
—E-AF s
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Cash and bank balances We MRITFER 24,507 33,563

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$11,914,000 (2015: HK$17,014,000) of bank balances
denominated in RMB placed with banks in the PRC and
bear interest at an effective interest rate of approximately
0.28% (2015: 0.60%) per annum. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. Under the Mainland China’s Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through banks that are authorised
to conduct foreign exchange business.

Included in cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$2,654,000 (2015: HK$1,543,000) of bank balances
denominated in MYR placed with banks in Malaysia and
bear interest at an effective interest rate of approximately
0.05% (2015: 0.07%) per annum. In Malaysia, the Group
is permitted to exchange MYR into foreign currencies.

The directors of the Group considered that the fair value
of the short term bank deposits is not materially different
from their carrying amount because of the short maturity
period at their inception.

—B-AEFH

HEERIZERERA R

AEE RS RIBITHEHRETE11,914,000
BIT(ZZE—FHF 17,014,000/ 7T) B71F
PR EERRITUARKSE  BHEBE
FFRELH028% (ZZT—FF : 0.60%)5T
BZRIBER - ARBATIERREE
B o IRIE P B A2 SNE K E B &
HIE - EEMMNEKRGRE  AEETE
EBBERATEITINE SIRER 2 RITH
AREE SR BINE o

REEZH® RIRTTFHEIE2,654,00078
T(ZZE—H% : 1,543,000 7T ) A7 R
BERAGENFITAFTEE - REBRF
FZEH0.05% (ZZF—FHF : 0.07%):t &
ZIRITIER - AEEEER S RAEIREA
15 55 H BN o

AEBEER/RARTEARZAAEE

HHFEEYEREAEZRE H REEREBS
FmEsZIH R ERE -
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —E— NF+-_A=+—HIFFZF

26. ASSETS OF A DISPOSAL COMPANY 26. 7EAFEFHEZ—BHEER

CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/
LIABILITIES OF A DISPOSAL
COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE

The Group has decided to dispose of a subsidiary, it
FEBERERKB AR AR ("Excel BJ”), during the year.
As at 31 December 2016, the negotiation process with
potential buyer is in progress, consequently assets and
liabilities are classified as held for sale. Subsequently
to the reporting date, on 18 January 2017, the Group
has entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party to dispose of the 65%
shareholding equity of Excel BJ.

Assets and liabilities of the disposal company as at 31
December 2016 are as follows:

(a) Assets of a disposal company classified as

BAREE TEABELEZ
—BHEQRZEE

FA - AKERE L E—HHBARILR
SHREEMBEAERAR(TIERER]) - B
“E-RFE+-A=t+—HB EREEE
FKETERBREY  AHEEERARBT
SIERHER SR - RIREAME - £
T—tF-A+N\B  AEEE-RZBT
F=ZFRIMNT —HEEWZ - HELERE
TR )65 % IXFE -

ZEERAR_E—RF+-A=+—H
ZEERABWT

(a) DEABFFHEZ-—BEHER

held for sale AEE
2016
—E-AE
HK$°000
FBxT
Property, plant and equipment mE - BERE 1,038
Amount due from customers for contract work JERE R4 TERIE 17,560
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 BR3% & B A0 W 5K IR 8,895
Cash and cash equivalents REMRESEEY 5,534
33,027

(b) Liabilities of a disposal company classified

(b) ZPEAFFHEZ-RBEHER

as held for sale AAaE
2016
—E-XREF
HK$°000
FHT
Amount due to customers for contract work ENREAELITIEFIA 21
Trade and other payables FETE 5 Rk R EAth JE 5 5K IE 30,380
30,401
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27.

28.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

TRADE PAYABLES

The Group was granted by its third parties suppliers
credit periods ranging from 30 days to 60 days. Trade
payable from a related party is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and repayable on demand (details of transactions
are disclosed in note 35). Based on the invoice dates, the
ageing analysis of the trade payables were as follows:

27.

FEf+ & 5 AR X

FZTHERGTAKEZEERANT=
THEARTH  -RE—RBHETZENE
SEFREER - DB RARERER
(RGN FHIBEMEBAHE) - BRIFEF
BH - BNESRFKZERERSTOT

2016 2015

—E—XRE —E-HF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

0 - 30 days 0-30H 418 11,815
31 - 60 days 31 -60H - -
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H - -
Over 90 days FB3E90 H 148 12,589
566 24,404

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values FFESELBRBTE  AUEENES

of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable
approximation of its fair value.

RRZREERESEAARBEZEELD
g o

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 28. HittE[HERFEIRER
CHARGES

2016 2015
—E-AF —F—h%f
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Deferred income for maintenance services 1#& RGBT A 10,540 10,405
Deposits from customers and franchisees RERFPNEHFMBEE LS 2,228 2,343
Other payables H b e 50 8,074 5,903
Accrued charges TEIRE A 4,469 11,234
25,311 29,885

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values
of other payables and accrued charges are considered to
be a reasonable approximation of its fair value.

ZEAFFR HEERERERAR

PMETRBERLEE  WRBEMENR
BhERERAZEEABERERABEZS
AR -
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30.
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

BORROWINGS ==t
2016 2015
—E-XE —HF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHE T FATT
Other borrowings from a third party RE—BEZH2HMES - 4,098

The other borrowings from a third party were settled as
at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2015, the loans borrowed from a
third party were unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per
annum and repayable within 1 year from the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amounts of the amounts
due approximate their fair values.

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation is calculated on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate
of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) for Hong Kong entities and 25%

30.

=t
72 RABEEE B -

E-RAF+A=+—H  XRA—4%
F=ZNZERBEER - RFEME12%5
BRBBE2RBARET— $W1E2 ° %F
FRAZEEEREE QA EERS

i

EER IR

BEERBEDRERPRBIEEEEIRAE
BzHEERTRHERES R EREZEE
Iym m5%(—f £¢ m5%ﬂi

(2015: 25%) on the PRC entities in the Group at the end 25%(=F—F%F : 26%):THE
of the reporting period.
The movement during the year in the deferred tax assets FRAREEPBRARER 2 EERIBE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial EgBmT
position is as follows:
2016 2015
—REF —ET—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
At 1 January m—H—H - (1,307)
Exchange differences e H =58 - 67
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 36) HE—FWEB AR (MizE36) - 94
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) ERBEmKRNER(KEE10) = 1,146

At 31 December
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 30. EEBIE#)
The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities FERNREERBEERGE(ER—FIA
(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation BARER AR A SRR ) 2 Z# BT ¢

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE
Accelerated tax
depreciation
MERBTE
HK$°000
FExT
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—A—H 74
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FWBAF (74)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 Eé:g AFE+-A=1+—H
and 31 December 2016 ZE-RFE—A—BkK
—E-RFTZA=1+—H -
Deferred tax assets EERBEE
Tax losses Provisions Total
BEEE B o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET FHT FET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZZ—-h¥—A—H (168) (1,213) (1,381)
Exchange differences bE 5 =5 - 67 67
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—TMRBAF 168 = 168
Recognised in profit or loss ERERR AR - 1,146 1,146
At 31 December 2015 and RZZE—RFE+-A=+—HK
1 January 2016 and B N bl =054
31 December 2016 —E-RFt+ZHA=1+—H - - -
Unrecognised deferred tax liabilities RERELEREEE
At 31 December 2016, temporary differences relating RZE—ARFE+=ZA=+—H80 - MTJ%’Rﬁ
to the undistributed profits of a subsidiary amounted ﬂiﬁ/)ﬁ/mﬂziﬁﬁﬁiggﬁ BT (ZT—
to HK$NIl (2015: HK$1,899,000). Deferred tax liabilities % : 1,899,000 7T) ° AR AW ARFHD ,er
have not been recognised in respect of the tax that Ei%%‘é@iﬁTﬁlJﬁﬁFEﬁZﬁIEﬁEw}ELMIE
would be payable on the distribution of these retained 8E  DEAQREHZMBARZKRE
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy of B - BARAERAI R 2 KRR ZE R IR
this subsidiary and it has been determined that it is BETZEDIR °

probable that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.
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30.

31.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses
of approximately HK$88,447,000 (2015: HK$87,397,000)
to carry forward against future taxable income. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
tax losses at 31 December 2016 and 2015 due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

These tax losses do not expire under current legislation
except losses of approximately HK$42,743,000 (2015:
HK$40,736,000) which will expire as follows:

30.

NFF—_A=+—HIFFE

EIERIE ()
AEAZEEHBEE

RZZE—RF+=-A=+—8 ' ~£B8H
RENAFIBE1E 488,447,000 T (=T —
A : 87,397,000 T ) &K - A IEIEK Y
RIRFERFIUA o A EIAMET AR R F
R AEgR T Fr-_T—F
F+ZA=+—AMNBEEBERELER
HEE °

hERBEEBRERB L2 NS ER
MEBSHE 442,743,000 T( —E— A F :
40,736,00078 7T ) 52 T 5| BAfE fE i

2016 2015
—XRE —hE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT

Year of expiry: [E e E]
2016 ZE—RF - 2,349
2017 —E—+F 2,608 2,771
2018 —ZT—N\F 6,663 7,079
2019 fﬂi 6,398 6,798
2020 —E-F 5,986 21,739
2021 —E-—F 21,088 -
42,743 40,736
As at 31 December 2016, no tax losses was related to RZE—RF+ZA=+—H ' XEHET

Excel BJ, the disposal company classified as held for
sale.

ANMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. The carrying amount of the
amounts due approximates its fair value.
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32.

33.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

SHARE CAPITAL 32. &
2016 2015
“B-RF —T-hE
Number of Number of
shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000
RPEE TR R &A AT
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each SREE0 BT LR
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRk
+-R=+-HF 5,000,000,000 500,000 5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERIRAR
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BRk
+-ZR=+—H 1,188,460,000 118,846 1,188,460,000 118,846

The holder of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company's residual assets.

RESERVES 3

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves
() Share premium

The share premium represents the
difference between nominal value of the
shares issued by the Group and the amount
of the consideration. The application of
the share premium account is governed by
section 40 of the Bermuda Companies Act.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements that
have functional currency other than HKS.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note
2.5.

TEREEAGERRTESEZ RS -
BEERAATDEHLRERBHR—
= A EBRUAAT I HBEETA
RSifr -

3. ##E
(a) RHEZHEREH

(i) JR 174 18
B R EBEIEAREEAETR
eEHERRESE AL

Z8 o BIaEREMAR
BRENAEFIOFREE -

(i) SMEREE

SMNERBEERBREREINGE
R RIFBTZIMBRERM
EEZAINEER - Zf#
BIRBM 2.5 8 2 &5t
BOREE -
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33. RESERVES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Distributability of reserve

The payment of future dividends will be
determined by the Group’s owners. The payment
of the dividends will depend upon the future
earnings, capital requirement, financial conditions
and general business conditions of the Group.

As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, there was no
reserve available for distribution to the owners of
the Group.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company regarding the changes in the Group’s
ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries.

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

33. #EE)

(b)

(c)

A 5 Tk A

ARBB N BAKEREA AR
E o REZXMBERNALER
‘BN - EATFR - BB R
EREEWR -

BE_Z—XRFAZE—RAF+=
A=+—8  ¥&EJHIKFTAE
BiEE A2 -

=N

BERNREE DA E
ENHERRENRAEEZEN
Z8  NREANEERRIRBAR
AEA ARAEERKB R RS
A EES (W ESREAMAM
BRI B
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34.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which
are payable by the Group are as follows:

NFF—A=+—HIFFE

. REHERE

REHRPR - AEERBIATHE KL
HERLHIEEMBEAEZZERS
MR IA TR XA -

2016 2015

—nE —E—RF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within one year —FR 4,420 5,028
In the second to fifth years BE_FZERF 3,963 2,155
8,383 7,183

The Group leases the land and buildings under operating
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to three
(2015: one to three) years, with an option to renew the
lease and renegotiated the terms at the expiry dates
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and respective landlords. None of the leases include
contingent rentals.

As at 31 December 2016, lease commitments of
HK$692,000 within one year was related to Excel BJ, the
disposal company classified as held for sale.

“EAEFR PEERERERAT

AEERBELEHNOEEL MR = *%
HMOZNAHERR—FE=F(=2F—
F:—FE=F)" Mﬂ‘ﬁu%%ﬁ%’]ﬁﬁﬁﬁ
SAKEEERE T KRR EZ A RER
B REFZER - BOBTRREAR
e -

RZZB-—RFE+A=+—0  FHR—
FAMEEANEE692,000/8 TR B/
EHE 2 HERARILRERER -
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35.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 35. BEFRBEEIRS
TRANSACTIONS

35.1

Connected and related party transactions

In addition to the transactions/information MRTZESE
disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group had the
following material transactions with connected

and/or related parties:

AR5

35.1 BBELTRBEBIRS

B 75 Rk B A 20 P
WEX S,/ AR ERAREBRIR
MEER N SEEETATE

2016 2015
“EB-RE —E-nF
Connected and/or related parties Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BELR/ REHS REHE TET TET
Companies in which directors of the
Company have interests
ARRESHERER DA
- Hangzhou Baidi Jewellery Company Limited* Sales of gold and jewellery products 217 -
(Baidi Jewellery) (notes a, e)
mMEaFEERAR ([FRKE]) (fia o) HEESRKEER
- Shenzhen City Zhong Chuang Union Investment Sales of gold and jewellery products - 1,217
Company Limited* (“Zhong Chuang”) (notes b, e)
ATREBEREBRRA ([RE] (T e)  HEBSRAREEM
- Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Culture Development Co. Ltd.** Purchase of packaging materials for 29 282
("Didi Culture”) (notes a, €) the brand H.K. JEWELRY
AYEERE L BRAR DA ([ @ik ) BEBERERE 2 BEMH
(Ffizta ~ e)
- Hangzhou Didi Commercial Showcases Company Purchase of showcases for the 124 326
Limited* ("Didi Showcases”) (notes a, €) brand H.K. JEWELRY
mMEEEEREERAR(NaaREA]) (Mida o) BEAARERECER
- Shenzhen Yihua Jewellery Company Limited* Operating lease charges on land 2,252 1,674
("Shenzhen Yihua") (notes c, e) and building
AYTBERE BRI BR R A ([RYZE]) T RBFREHEER
(FizEc ~ el
Associate
kYN
- Excel Technology International (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Professional fee received 29,063 16,737
("Excel HK") (notes d, e) EhEXER
TEREER(BE)BRAR([FBEHS]) (H3d *e)  Professional fee paid 7,812 4,331
ENEXER
Purchase of complementary 1,281 1,905
hardware and software
BERERHRAMY
Administration expenses 960 350

142 Yu Tak International Holdings Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2016

reimbursements (Net paid)
TR HE(ENFE)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

35. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 35.

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

35.1 Connected and related party transactions

(Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Baidi Jewellery, Didi Culture and Didi Showcases
areownedas to 90%, 65% and 80%
respectively by Hangzhou Didi Investment Joint
Stock Company Limited* (A& & Kk H A
fRZ2®]), which in turn is owned as to 10% and
90% by Mr. Lin Di and his father, respectively.
Mr. Lin Di is a shareholder of the Company at
31 December 2016 and 2015. He resigned as an
executive director of the Company on 30 October
2015.

Zhong Chuang is owned as to 81% by the
brother of Ms. Li Xia (a director of the Company).

Shenzhen Yihua is a shareholder of the Company
as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Excel HK has become an associate since 27
May 2015 and is ultimately 50% owned by Ms.
Zee Chan Mei Chu, Peggy, a director of the
Company's subsidiaries.

The above related party transactions also
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

These transactions were conducted in the Group's
normal course of business and at mutually agreed
prices and terms.

*

The English names of the PRC companies are
translation of their respective Chinese names
included for information only and are not their
official names.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
name of R l#EFMBRBR AT (Shenzhen
Didi Jewellery Packaging Company Limited)
was changed to RIBHEKE X LBERBR QA
(Shenzhen Didi Jewellery Culture Development
Co. Ltd.)

B AEER

HEERIZERERA R

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

/i

BEESRBEBAIRS &)
35.1 BBELIRBEBAIRS (&)

B

ﬂ!\t

(a) BEKE b RdnE
AN BlmmMEERERnGE
RARHFEI% ~ 65% K%80%
B MmN BRI ERDE
RAB AAREEERERXS B
FE10% KRI0% 2 - RN =
E-RNER_T—AF+_A
=+—H  HBEEBEAF
ZHRE - HER-_E—RHET+
A=THBEEARARITES -

(b) FEBHFTELL(ARRAESY
—IZBREES I wiER ©

© R-F-AER-F-AFT
—A=+—A  RYBEEA
AFZBH °

(d) EREEB_ZE-AFOAC
TLHHERBBERR - XA
ERARMBRAEFRRELR
R ERIEHEAL0% Eas ©

(e) L AR )T R 5 TR B E R
FERIEBERERH(EHERAIE
RETRAUE—TF) -

HERZHNRAEE B EEB BRI
BT REZ B RIGFET ©

* ZEPERARZEXARE
EEEPXEH  EH2E
WIFHIEXEE -

# BE_T-R"FTA=1+—
BIEFE  RIBEEHEE
BRABN AW R FRY &8

B LBRARAQA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY 35.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

35.1

35.2

Connected and related party transactions
(Continued)
In addition to the transactions/information

disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group

NETZA=+—HIFE

BEIRBHAIRZ &)

351 BEARRBELIRS(E)

BT RERAMBRREMEBOM
REXS,/EHIN - FRAREHHE
BRET &SR T 2 EAKRIEE

had the following material outstanding balances EHRIT o
with connected and/or related parties.
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$000 HK$'000
F#&T T
Companies controlled by controlling  H#E MR S AT $1 KA &)
shareholders
Trade receivables FEWE SRR - 425

Key management personnel remuneration

Key management personnel of the Group are
members of the board of directors, as well as
certain senior management personnel. Included

35.2 TEEEBEAEME
AEBTEEBAEBAEEENE
LETEHREEAE - BIRAE
EFEEEAEBME EhEET

in staff costs are key management personnel PR -
remuneration which includes the following
expenses:
2016 2015
=BT —E-RF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 2,255 3,791
Post-employment benefits B2 @A 123 74
2,378 3,865
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

LOSS OF CONTROL OF A
SUBSIDIARY

On 27 May 2015, the Group, Excel HK, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company’s subsidiary and a company
wholly owned by Ms. Zee Chan Mei Chu Peggy, a
director of the Company’s subsidiary and a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level (the
“Subscriber”), entered into a subscription agreement,
pursuant to which, Excel HK agreed to allot and issue
1,000 shares and the Subscriber agreed to subscribe the
shares at a price subsequently adjusted to HK$4,872,889
and was paid by the Subscriber in July 2015.

Upon completion of the subscription on 27 May 2015,
each of Excel (BVI) Limited and the Subscriber owned
50% of the issued share capital of Excel HK. The Group
considered that they did not have control over Excel
HK after the subscription. As such, the subscription
resulted in Excel HK ceasing to be a subsidiary of the
Group. Excel HK became an associate of the Group with
effect from 27 May 2015 and have accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The fair value of the equity interest retained
by the Group on the date when the control was lost is
recognized as deemed cost of acquisition of interest in
an associate.

“TAEEE HERMERERAR

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

36. KEH—EHNBEQ R 2ZH5E

RZZE—AFRA-Z++H KAEH -
EEREB(ARANBARZEZENB A
RE—FHBEARFNBRARESERAR
AIRMIBARIEE 2 BEATRREKRL
T2EBEHEBE 2R READLRE
ek B ERBERERE KRBT
1,000 [% 10 - MABRBARZIAELEZAE
54,872,889 B L 2 BIERBZER D -
FRAREEARBARZE—RAFELAX
fF o

R-E—AFERA-T+HEKRAEEE
% - Excel (BVI) Limited RRBAZ B %
BEEEBZ50%DEITHRA - REER
ARRBEEE  HEVEHSRESHE
BEEHE - Al REEHEBREREE
TEAAEBZWEBAR - B-_F—RF
AAZTLAE  TREBNALEEZ
BN E - WIRAER AT ALRE P B®R
x o HEREEREER AEEFRE
Rz A ABERRBBEER —HBE A
A2 e 2 RAERAR -
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e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

36. LOSS OF CONTROL OF A 36. AEH—RMEB QR ZZEHE
SUBSIDIARY (Continued) (%)
HK$'000
T
Aggregated net assets disposed of: B HEEETFHE:
Property, plant and equipment Y E N 1,016
Deferred tax assets EERIRE B 94
Inventories ENS 1,349
Amounts due from customers for contract work EREFELHTIZEFIE 5,517
Trade receivables FEU B 5 R K 8,795
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HhEUNEIE -~ e KRB FUR 2,459
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BARBEITABERZCRHEE 28,291
Cash and cash equivalents REMRSEEY 22,508
Trade payables FETE SRR (2,422)
Other payables and accrued charges HiENRIERTEREA (25,027)
Amount due to the Group FET AN B FRIE (33,215)
Amounts due to customers for contract work ENEFPEHIENRIE (3,976)
5,389
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary: HE— B AR ZEIE :
Fair value of the equity interest retained in Excel HK REREBRBBHEZ AL EE 5,131
Net assets disposed of HECEESE (5,389)
(258)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZRSRHEFHE -
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZHRERREEEY (22,508)
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 37. UBERELR

37.
CONTRACTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group had given
corporate guarantee to a third party and Excel HK in
respect of all monies owed by and/or the obligations
and liabilities of the Excel HK due to a third party under
a service contract to the extent of HK$5,518,000 (2015:
HK$8,500,000). At the end of reporting period, no
provision for the Group's obligation under the guarantee
contract has been made as there was no amounts due
by Excel HK to the third party at the end of the reporting
period and the directors considered that it was not
probable that the service obligations by Excel HK would
not be met. The fair value of the guarantee at initial
recognition is immaterial.
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REFRBR - ARRERTRETBRE—
DRBEHMENT—RBE=ZFZHER
RE/UEARAEE  MZEE=ZARE
ERBE NS LR A5,518,0008 T(=
T — A : 8,500,000/87C) 2 A AIER °
REWRBAKR - AREBE BN 2BERL
BRIBEKRZELBE=H AREERAE
EEBIAREELIBTAEBBREET &
WERTEERBEZDERSGOZEEE
LEE - ZERZ AR BERYVIRERE
WAREK o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations
and in its investment activities. The financial risks include
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its financial risk and takes actions to mitigate such risk.
The Group adopts conservative strategies on its risk
management and seeks to limit the Group’s exposure to
these risks to a minimum. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

There has been no change to the type of the Group's

exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

i

38.

HEERIZERERA R

NFE+—A=+—HIFZE

HEEBEEREMIAQR
BEE

AEBERANEAREBBIEP RNEKRE
AEBPEAER T AMmMAESBRR - 8
BRREED SRR (2EINERR - F
KRR EMERRR)  FEERR IR
MR o

AR B E B et KB H A SR
B - WERITERIEEBRR - AEEE
[ E IR 75 RV R R T ER RS - B
HAREAZ Z HFRBBERE - EF
RN LRAEEESEBRARZHER

AEEMSREMIARBR  BEREE
BRFEABRR 2 TELEEE) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —E— NF+-_A=+—HIFFZF

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. MKEBEEREMIARAR

AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and

liabilities

The carrying amounts presented in the statement
of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial

38.1

BE#)

TRHEERAEBEZER

BRI F 2 51 2 BREE S R A
THHzEMEERTRAE

liabilities:
2016 2015
—E—XF —E—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T
Financial assets ERMEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESRERE
— Unlisted private equity fund, —FLTRAREES -
at fair value BARER - -
Loans and receivables ek & e SRR
— Trade receivables —EWE HERFK 14,016 23,686
— Other receivables and deposits —HthEURIE RIS 7,376 12,075
— Cash and cash equivalents -BeRkREEEY 24,507 33,563
45,899 69,324
Financial liabilities EA =R
Financial liabilities measured REHER AT EZ emAaRE
at amortised cost
— Trade payables —ENEB SRR 566 24,404
— Other payables and —HiENRIERBRER
accrued charges 14,771 19,480
— Amounts due to directors —ENEERIE 15,046 9,552
- Borrowings —f&E - 4,098
30,383 57,534
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e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &2 —FE— NF+ - HA=1+—HI FZE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38. BiiEE e

BE®)

e EERETMIAAR

38.2 Foreign currency risk

38.2 HMEREPE

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. It is the Group's policy for
each operating entity to operate in local currencies
as far as possible to minimise currency risks. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arise
from its overseas sales and purchases, which
are primarily denominated in United State Dollar
("US$"”), Renminbi (“RMB") and Japanese Yen
("JPY"). These are not the functional currencies of
certain Group entities to which these transactions
relate.

SNERGIEEE RS MER TR
TAEZARBEFIERKBESRE
IR B 2 Bk o AN&E RS EL
**ﬁ‘ﬁ“ﬁ%mz& 5 RS B AR
g BRI EREIERR o A&
EEZMERBIREEEZUE
T(ERT]  ARBTARBDR
RE(BEDFEZEINEE KK
E% HEEBWIIEPRLERS 2
ETHEEER IR -

The following table details the Group’s exposure TRFAFMNREHEARANEEE LA
at the end of the reporting period to foreign BERNEEENIINZEBAEZ
currency risk arising from recognised assets and EREERBEMARZ ZINER
liabilities denominated in a currency other than fsfE -
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate are shown below:
US$ RMB JPY
EpH AR =]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FET F#&T F#& T
At 31 December 2016 R-E—XRE
+=A=+—H
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEED 787 120 277
At 31 December 2015 R-ZFE—HF
+=-—A=+—8
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEEYD 811 115 268
Borrowings BE - (4,098) -
Overall net exposure AL bR FER 811 (3,983) 268

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of
fluctuation in RMB and JPY.

B AEER

HEERIZERERA R

AEEXZ2AZARBEARZEBT

@ o
=
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e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Since the HK$ is pegged to US$, foreign currency
risk between these two currencies to the Group is
considered to be insignificant.

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group's loss after income tax for the year and
equity in regards to an appreciation/depreciation
in HK$ against RMB and JPY. These rates are

BEEREEREMIAAR

(%)

38.2 SNERBR(E)

HRBTEIXTHE  AEEE
It E B B 2 B SMNE Rl I N E
* o

TRIAFARKENGRAEHRER
EREEEGHETAAREKLAR
e/ REZHRE - ZFEXRT)
ABREBREIEABZ2RINERKR
REAZER - SEEEHERA

the rates used when reporting foreign currency

risk internally to key management personnel and B E) v & EfGET
represents management’s best assessment of the

possible change in foreign exchange rates.

Increase/
(Decrease)
in foreign Effect on Effect on
exchange loss after component
rate income tax of equity
ExtFH - HMBRAEHR HRERGZ
(TF8) #BEEZZE =
HK$°000 HK$°000
% FHET FHET
2016 —E—RE
RMB AR 3% (4) 4
(3%) 4 (4)
JPY H 5% (14) 14
(5%) 14 (14)
2015 —E-HF
RMB AR 3% 119 (119)
(3%) (119) 119
JPY H 5% (13) 13
(5%) 13 (13)

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during
the year depending on the volume of overseas
transactions. Nevertheless, the analysis above is
considered to be representative of the Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk.

FAZINERBRBURNEINRZ 5
E - A - ERSITRBRE KR
REBRAR ZINERR
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e MR MR

NEFTZA=+—HILFE

for the year ended 31 December 2016 &% —&F—

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.3

384

38.5

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in the market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises
primarily from bank balances, amount due from
an investee company and borrowings. Borrowings
bearing fixed rates through the contractual terms
of the borrowings. The Group’s amount due from
an investee company is also stated at fixed rate
through the contractual terms. The exposure to
interest rates for the Group’s short-term bank
deposits is considered immaterial. The Group
therefore does not have significant exposure to
interest rate risk at the end of the reporting period
nor in comparative periods.

Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values of equity securities will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than changes
in interest rates and foreign exchange rates).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Group’s investments in listed equity securities
had been disposed of through deemed disposal
of the Group’s interest in Excel HK as detailed in
note 36. Accordingly, the Group is not exposed to
significant other price risk at 31 December 2016
and 2015.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group's exposure to credit risk mainly arises
from granting credit to customers in the ordinary
course of its operations and its investing activities.

—B-AEFH

38.

38.3

384

38.5

HEBERZERARLDE 151

BREREEREMITAAAR
BEE

(%)

AR E R

NMEEBESRIAZAREER
B BTSN R 8 H IR K
BRR - AKREHONERRARER
KBRITEFR - BERERRFKIEA
REE - BEBEBIIVEREZAYN
AT BEE RN B - A5 B R
B RAIFRIATVEBR] LA KRR
BEMEAR - AEEEBRITE
RPIAR 2 N REBRILAEK © 8
ARER B 2 HHR 3 L SR ] 3f
BEAMEER

HtE% =R

o E AR ISR A S AL EE
EREYU DIGIES T4
BN TRBA B2 AR -

BE_Z—hRF+-_A=+—H1L
FE - AEEREMBRAESZE
BEEBBRELERAEENE RS
BrEREE  FEBL28ME
36 At - AEER-F—X<FX
—E-RF+-A=t+—HIEEX
SEAHMERRR

FERERE
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e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.5

38.6

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
on recognised financial assets is limited to the
carrying amount at the end of the reporting period
as summarised in note 38.1.

In respect of credit risk associated with trade and
other receivables, management closely monitors
all outstanding debts and reviews the collectability
of the receivables periodically. As at the end of
the reporting period, the credit risk is considered
negligible as the counterparties are reputable
banks and multi-national companies with high
quality external credit ratings.

The Group adopts conservative investment
strategies with management monitoring the
investment portfolio. Usually, investments are
in liquid securities quoted on recognised stock
exchanges, except where entered into for long
term strategic purposes. See note 22 to these
consolidated financial statements for further
details of the Group’s exposures to credit risk on
trade receivables.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement
of trade payables and its financing obligations, and
also in respect of its cash flow management. The
Group's objective is to maintain an appropriate
level of liquid assets and committed lines of
funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The Group’s prudent policy is to regularly monitor
its current and expected liquidity requirements,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short term.

BREARETERSBMTEAAR
BE®

38.5

38.6

FEERCHRCHEEMATZ
EeFERBIASRARZREAE
AR - B HEES8.1 -

h 22 B M 5 R R e EL A B U ROR
HEZEERRME @ EEEER
ERMAAREEGR - MEHNEH
FEMGRIA Z AT AR I » X2 R
R ARRZETTEEEZRT
FONRIEEFREBEZEBR AR
BEERRERAMTRE -

AEBRARTRERE - XAHE
BEESEREHES  BERER/R
AR BAMBZRBES - H
I ERHIRESMEIRERI - B
AEBREEESERAAEES
Rk 2 —HeE - FLHRER
B ERME22 -

BN LB

MENER RS R AN EREAREBEBR
NREIHEMEREETAETE
HemaERBEaEE AR - A&
BHRENEBNESERERERE
UERHEBEREEEMAZRE M
Bk o RNEEZ BIRERERR
BENMARESNEEKF - Ll
REGHEEHRBESHK -

AEBZRTBRRAEHEEER
AIRERZ RBESHRK - MR
EEERENRENASFTENL
- AREEEHRBHESH
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 2 —E— NF+-A=+—HIFFZ

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

38.6

38.7

Liquidity risk (Continued)

When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the
basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement
of the liability is in instalments, each instalment
is allocated to the earliest period in which the
Group is committed to pay. At 31 December
2016 and 2015, the Group’s contractual maturity
for its financial liabilities are within one year
or on demand. The carrying amounts of its
financial liabilities approximate their contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value as at
31 December 2016 and 2015.

ZEAFFR HEERERERAR

BEEREEREMIAEAR
BEm®)

38.6

38.7
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39. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

39. KRDQ AR E

POSITION OF THE COMPANY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2016 2015
—E—XRE —E—hHEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries L IENGIPE: 3 - _
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments TERTRIE 302 311
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE I B8 A BRI 87,124 133,826
Cash and cash equivalents BeRREEED 24 85
87,450 134,222
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued charges HEmENZIERTEREA 1,468 1,264
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE <1 B /B X B 7R IE 64,753 64,753
Amounts due to directors B EEHIAE 15,046 9,552
Net current assets RBEEFHE 81,267 75,569
Total assets less current liabilities EERBERABESE 6,183 58,653
Net assets EEFE 6,183 58,653
EQUITY B
Share capital [N 118,846 118,846
Reserves (note) () (112,663) (60,193)
Total equity IR 6,183 58,653
Li Xia E-3=c} Chong Yu Ping HEY¥
Director BFE Director -
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39.

40.

e MR MR

for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— NF+ -H=+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 39. KR AIMBEARRFTZ)
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
Note: BEE -
The movement of the Company’s reserves are as follows: RARZ FEESBET
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
BRGRE Rt EE wazm
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—H—H 220,438 (275,462) (55,024)
Loss and total comprehensive FREEEEER S AR
expense for the year = (5,169) (5,169)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-ZE—HF
t=A=+—R
EZF—RF—H—H 220,438 (280,631) (60,193)
Loss and total comprehensive FRBEBREEAT B
expense for the year = (52,470) (52,470)
At 31 December 2016 R-B—RE
+=A=+—H 220,438 (333,101) (112,663)
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 40. EFXEHE

The Group’'s capital management objectives are to
ensure the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide an adequate return for shareholders by
pricing goods and services commensurately with the
level of risks.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.

“EAEFR PEERERERAT

AEBZEAEEBEREBARRARE
EHRABREMNMRGEERRAEEARE
FEQEERT  ARRREHREDOR -
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for the year ended 31 December 2016 B{2 —F— N NF+ -H=+—HIFE

40.

41.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure using gearing ratio which is net
debt divided by total equity. For this purpose, the Group
defines net debt as debt, which comprises short-term
borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity
comprises equity attributable to owners of the Company
and non-controlling interests stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position. During 2016, the Group's
strategy remains unchanged from 2015, which is to
maintain the gearing ratio of not more than 20% in order
to support its business. The gearing ratio at 31 December
2016 and 2015 were not presented as the Group has no
net debt as at 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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40.

2016 2015
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HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Total borrowings — Borrowings BEERE-EE - 4,098

Less: cash and cash equivalents B BeMReEEY (24,507) (33,563)

Net assets FEE (24,507) (29,465)

Total equity Izt 4azm 75,451 124,057
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING 41. BREWREREE

DATE
On 18 January 2017, the Group has entered into a sale N-_ZTE—+FE—B+N\H  KEFH—ZF

and purchase agreement with an independent third
party to dispose of Excel BJ, an indirect partially owned
subsidiary, at a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000. The
disposal of a subsidiary is expected to be completed
within 3 months after signing of the agreement. The
assets and liabilities of the disposal company are
classified as held for sale in note 26. For the details of
the disposal of the disposal company, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 18 January 2017.
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